
June 7, 2016 

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor   

Council Members Edinger, English, Evans, Gookin, McEvers, Miller



PRESENTATIONS 



6/2/2016

1

Police Department 
Annual Report

Lee White

Uniform Crime Reporting Program
Administered by the FBI



6/2/2016

2

2014 Violent Crime Data

City
Violent 

Crime Rate Population
Violent 
Crime Murder

Forcible
Rape Robbery

Aggravated 
Assault

Boise 296.40 216,260 641 4 123 57 457

Nampa 303.19 87,735 266 3 50 17 196

Meridian 80.48 85,733 69 2 19 1 47

Idaho Falls 215.00 58,606 126 0 36 7 83

Caldwell 320.58 49,597 159 1 13 8 137

Coeur d’Alene 509.03 46,952 239 2 40 22 175

Twin Falls 245.91 46,358 114 1 14 21 78

Lewiston 181.42 32,521 59 1 10 9 39

Post Falls 171.28 29,776 51 2 5 10 34

Moscow 48.57 24,705 12 0 1 1 10

*Data obtained from FBI 2014 Crime in the United States.

Crime per 100,000 since 2005 
Jurisdiction 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Boise 380 391 327 270 281 262 248 268 280 296

Nampa 472 326 326 335 347 327 272 244 239 303

Meridian 188 207 183 155 162 148 146 119 140 80

Idaho Falls 291 352 418 416 370 330 256 240 213 215

Caldwell 504 510 419 424 397 339 324 256 277 321

Coeur d’Alene 552 654 640 580 642 574 516 574 558 509

Twin Falls 368 332 376 332 360 342 284 377 260 246

Lewiston 123 107 131 144 144 166 171 170 153 181

Post Falls 256 261 235 302 214 139 176 184 245 171

Moscow 80 N/A 80 85 102 81 79 132 101 49



6/2/2016

3

TOTAL CALLS INCREASED 10% IN PAST TEN YEARS 

Number of additional CDA Officers needed to match other agencies

20 5 26 1052250 109

*Data obtained from Idaho State Police Crime in Idaho 2014 publication.



6/2/2016

4

TEN-YEAR TREND: Total Accidents Down 32%

Property Damage Only Accidents Down 40%
Personal Injury Accidents Down 16%

Hit & Run Accidents Down 31%

*Data obtained from Idaho Transportation Department – Web CARS



6/2/2016

5

Priority Law Enforcement
1 In-Progress life-threatening 

2 In progress property crimes or other calls requiring an 
immediate response such as welfare checks

3 Animal control calls

4 Non-emergencies, such as police reports, or questions. 

Looking Ahead

Crime reduction efforts
Community Action Team
Partnerships with the community



CONSENT CALENDAR 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO, 

HELD AT THE LIBRARY COMMUNITY ROOM 
 

May 17, 2016 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene met in a regular session of said Council at 
the Coeur d’Alene City Library Community Room May 17, 2016 at 5:15 p.m., there being 
present upon roll call the following members: 
 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
  
Loren Ron Edinger  ) Members of Council Present 
Dan Gookin    )   
Kiki Miller        )    
Woody McEvers  ) 
Amy Evans        )   
Dan English   )   
 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Widmyer called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION:  Pastor Mike Slothower with River of Life Friends gave the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilmember McEvers led the pledge of allegiance. 
 
CDA 2030 VISIONING PROJECT UPDATE AND SPONSORSHIP REQUEST:  Ron 
Lahner, a CDA 2030 boardmember requested the City consider continue funding the CDA 2030 
Visioning Project in this year’s budget planning process in the continued amount of $45,000.   
He noted that a forum such as 2030 provides a very important avenue for community 
engagement.  As they set goals, they identify an issue and move forward with an implementation 
plan.  He reviewed the deliverables and the number of volunteers involved in 2030.  Mr. Lahner 
described the plan as a living document and reviewed the number of actions items completed.  
He noted that they are planning to continue summer events, such as the Kid’s Camp, with a goal 
of serving 600 kindergarten through third graders.  He reviewed the non-city funding sources 
that average 61% of their funds and noted that the City has contributed approximately $145,000 
to date and it would have cost $400,000 for a private consultant to complete such a plan.   
 
Councilmember Gookin asked if the non-city entities have committed to another year of funding.  
Ms. Kahler, CDA 2030 Executive Director, noted that the entities listed have provided funds 
over the past three years.  The University of Idaho and Parkwood Business Properties have 
committed funds and they have several pending requests to other entities, as they have just begun 
the process for seeking funds this year.  Councilmember Gookin asked what the end game is for 
2030.  Ms. Kahler explained that it would be when the goals and implementation plan are 
complete, unless the city/community would like to start another visioning process.  
Councilmember Miller asked for clarification of how they review the implementation plan.  Ms. 
Kahler noted that they check in with the lead partners annually to see if revisions need to be 



2 

 
 

 Council Minutes May 17, 2016                 Page               

made, without losing the purpose set forth by the community.  There is an application to add and 
delete goals that is reviewed by the board.  Mayor Widmyer asked if Ms. Kahler would provide 
their draft budget to the Finance Director for distribution to the Council.      
 
LOCK IT OR LOSE IT:  Police Captain Hagar presented the “Lock it or Lose it” initiative.  He 
noted that they will be kicking this campaign off in the next couple of weeks and throughout the 
summer.  This is a police education effort for prevention of auto burglaries and thefts.  The best 
prevention of auto crime is by simply locking the vehicle and removing keys and possessions 
from the vehicle.  They will be putting the information out at the movie theaters and providing 
bookmarks at the Library, bus stops, billboard, etc.  They are seeking out insurance companies to 
underwrite the costs.   
 
PROCLAMATION FOR BIKE TO WORK MONTH – JUNE 2016:  Trails Coordinator 
Monte McCully accepted the Proclamation and noted that there will be events throughout the 
community during Bike to Work Week (June 5-10, 2016).  Events include a bike ride in costume 
event that leads bicyclists to area parks on a scavenger hunt, a kick-off ride from Riverstone Park 
to Java on Sherman; beer tasting and a movie at Pilgrims Market; a Centennial Trail fundraising 
gala at Java; and a moonlight ride starting at Vertical Earth.  Visit www.CDA.org/parks/biketo 
workweek for more information and specific dates and times of events.  
 
CITIZEN APPRECIATION PRESENTATION:   Deputy Fire Chief Tom Greif, Firefighter 
Erik Loney, and Firefighter/Paramedic Eric Paul noted the importance of CPR and citizens 
assisting in emergencies.  Deputy Greif explained that they encountered two incidents in which 
they wanted to give recognition to citizens who provided life-saving action prior to paramedics 
arriving on the scene.  He presented the “Chain of Survival” that demonstrates how each item 
increases the chance of survival.  Early action and CPR are the beginning of the chain.  Deputy 
Greif presented recognition to Daylynn Day, Cheri McCormack, and Amanda Deeds for live 
saving measures provided to a citizen on December 14, 2016 at a local fitness facility.  
Additionally, he presented recognition for providing life saving measures on December 29, 2016 
to Shawn Burke for an emergency that occurred at With Performance.  The two patients would 
not have survived if it had not been for the efforts of these citizens.   
 
APPLICATION FOR TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM GRANT 
FUNDING (TAP) FOR EAST SHERMAN PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS:  Community 
Planning Director Hilary Anderson explained that this grant would fund three signalized 
intersections on East Sherman.  As part of the East Sherman revitalization project planning, 
safety came up as a component and these signalized intersections would provide an added 
measure of safety for pedestrians.  In July, they conducted a walking audit along East Sherman 
with 21 stakeholders.  Ms. Anderson presented an example of rectangular rapid flash beacons 
(RRFB) which are a flashing sign that would be purchased with the grant funds.  She proposed 
the RRFB to be located at 9th, 13th, and 21st Streets, which includes a school crossing at 9th 
Street.  They have found that this increases drivers stopping by 80-90%.  The grant request is for 
$45,000, which would require a cash match of $3,300.00.  
 
Councilmember Gookin asked what account the cash match would come from.  Ms. Anderson 
thought that it could be included in fiscal year 2016-2017 budget requests or out of the 



3 

 
 

 Council Minutes May 17, 2016                            Page                        

professional services line item.  Additionally, the City can select the fiscal year to utilize the 
funds, so if the City wanted to push it out to the following fiscal year they could.   Mayor 
Widmyer noted that TAP grants are noticed as available in April, and then due within 5-6 weeks.  
Councilmember Miller said she looked at the plans for crosswalks and reviewed the audit, which 
recommended a high visibility ladder style crosswalk and use of high visibility paint.  Ms. 
Anderson confirmed that they would include that style of crosswalk and would like to include a 
curb extension as well.   Councilmember English expressed that this is a very cost efficient item.  
 
MOTION:  Motion by English, seconded by Evans to authorize staff to proceed with the TAP 
grant request process for the East Sherman Pedestrian Crossing.  Motion carried. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Motion by Miller, second by McEvers, to approve the consent 
calendar.  

1. Approval of Council Minutes for May 3, 2016 Council Meeting. 
2. Approval of Bills as Submitted. 
3. Approval of the Public Works Committee Minutes for the May 9, 2016 Meetings. 
4. Setting of General Services and Public Works Committees meetings for May 23, 2016 at 

12:00 noon and 4:00 p.m. respectively. 
5. Approval of a Cemetery Lot transfer from Joyce Barr of lots 229, 230; Block C; Section 

RIV, Forest Cemetery Annex. 
6. Resolution No. 16-026:   A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, 

KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, AUTHORIZING THE BELOW MENTIONED 
CONTRACTS AND OTHER ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, 
INCLUDING APPROVAL OF S-5-14 – THE TRAILS 1ST ADDITION – APPROVAL 
OF FINAL PLAT, ACCEPTANCE OF INSTALLED INFRASTRUCTURE, 
MAINTENANCE / WARRANTY AGREEMENT, AND SECURITY; APPROVAL OF 
S-35-16 - LINK LANE TOWNHOMES – APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT, 
SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT, AND SECURITY; APPROVAL OF AN 
AGREEMENT WITH THE BUOY, LLC, FOR FOOD CONCESSION AT THE 
MCEUEN PARK ROTARY HARBOR HOUSE; APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 
1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH J-U-B ENGINEERS, 
INC. FOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE INTERSECTIONS OF N. 
MEDINA STREET - IRONWOOD DRIVE AND EMMA AVENUE - US 95; 
DECLARATION OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT RELATED TO FIREBOAT 399 AND A 
1991 CHEVY SUBURBAN; AND APPROVAL OF BID AWARD AND CONTRACT 
WITH T. LARIVIERE EQUIPMENT, INC. FOR THE 2016 OPEN TRENCH 
PROJECT.  

 
ROLL CALL:  Evans Aye; English Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye. 
Motion Carried. 
 



4 

 
 

 Council Minutes May 17, 2016                 Page               

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
Susan Snedaker, CDA, noted that there was recently an issue regarding the tracking of conditions 
made by the Planning Commission within Bellerive regarding open space.  She feels that 
conditions on different land use issues provide no consistency and are not recorded so they are 
not carried forward to new owners or enforced upon existing owners.  She provided examples 
regarding required paving conditions that are never enforced.  She believes that if the conditions 
were recorded as part of the deed/title it would be a way for the City to follow up on conditions.    
 
Pat Kinny owns the food court at 510 Best Avenue.  He provided the Council with proposed 
regulations based on the City of Portland’s code as a basis for the City to use.  He noted the grey 
water disposal section of the code, bathrooms, outside seating, etc.   
 
Heather Riviere noted that she owns the Crepe mobile vending, and will be moving over to the 
Best Avenue food court.  She provided written comments earlier.  She noted that they are already 
compliant with Panhandle Health District codes.  During their creation phase of the food truck, 
Panhandle Health District was the only place they could get direction on how to organize their 
space and seek compliance.  She noted that she is pleased that the City is moving forward with 
clear and specific parameters.  She requested that all codes be included in the ordinance so there 
are no “gotcha” moments to vendors.   She is worried about the permits being established by a 
set time limit and requested information regarding cost.   
 
Corky Myer, Coeur d’Alene, has noticed that the Parks and Recreation donor plaque at McEuen 
is only partially filled and some days it is clean and some days it is dirty.  He suggested that 
more people would donate if the City put a sign up providing contact information of someone 
you could contact to donate, as well as contact information for the carousel project.  
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Councilmember Evans noted that the Arts Commission and Pedestrian Bicycle Committee put 
together an art in motion brochure showing where art is located so one can walk or cycle to each 
piece.  They are looking for businesses to sponsor brochures.  If interested, please contact the 
city at Sean Holm, Arts Commission Liaison at 676-7401.  The Arts Commission has a call to 
arts out for a piece at the Riverstone Park pond.  Additionally, they are working on a call for 
murals at the Sherman Avenue Square Park and the underpass where the Prairie and Centennial 
Trails converge.  The piece entitled “Under the Rainbow” has been updated with wrapped cables 
and is much brighter.  Currently there is one vacancy on Arts Commission.  If interested, please 
complete the application located on the city web at 
http://www.cdaid.org/files/Administration/ArtsCommissionComplete.pdf . 
 
 
APPOINTMENTS:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Edinger to approve the appointment of 
Joshua Gore to the Design Review Commission.   Motion carried 

 

http://www.cdaid.org/files/Administration/ArtsCommissionComplete.pdf


5 

 
 

 Council Minutes May 17, 2016                            Page                        

PRESENTATION OF THE PARKING STUDY   
 
Mr. Tymesen noted that this study was an update to a previous study conducted by Rich and 
Associates and introduced Annaka Norris as the Planner/Project Manager for the study.  Ms. 
Norris noted that their firm specializes in parking and that the previous study was done in 2007-
2008. She noted that they like to see a City in control of 50% of the parking in a downtown area 
and the City of Coeur d’Alene is in control of 41%.  They reviewed the current parking demand 
on a block-by-block basis, based on building inventory and on-street and off-street parking.  The 
current demand for the overall study area indicated a surplus of 452 spaces.  She explained that 
they focused on the core business area, where they determined that people are not going to walk 
to the City Hall parking but will walk to the McEuen parking area.  So, as they looked the core 
business area, they found a deficit of 221 spaces.  They based the study and conducted the 
review of the specific area referred to as the core area.  She noted that special events are a 
different use and people are willing to walk much further during those events.  They provided 
recommendations on how to deal with current and future issues.   Recommendations included 
marketing to let people know where to park, and education, which can be as simple as a 
brochure.  Ms. Norris encouraged the City to create a special event-parking plan, including the 
use of sandwich board signs, flyers and parking ambassadors.  Parking signs are another key 
component to parking, such as directional/locational signage; wayfinding; informational, and 
directions for use of pay stations.  She specifically noted that recommendations for the McEuen 
lot include installation of five additional pay stations, and consideration to converting pay 
stations to pay-by-license plate, and converting parking enforcements to license plate 
recognition, and encouraged permits be available for purchase online by license plate.  The pay 
by license plate and credit card provides an option to give text alerts if cell phone numbers are 
entered at the pay stations.  Ms. Norris noted that our machines could be upgraded to add this 
option for cell phone notifications.  She recommended having ambassadors utilized for the first 
two to three weeks of the implementation of a new parking system.   Additional 
recommendations included the discouragement of private parking lots in the downtown area and 
the increase of parking enforcement to two part-time persons, and three during the peak season.  
She encouraged parking enforcement to follow multiple routes at multiple times and the use of 
hand held equipment to their full capacity and utilizing license plate numbers that will provide 
the tracking of shuffling, repeat offenders, etc.   The finding included a recommendation to 
increase the fine schedule to include some courtesy tickets options.  An additional suggestion is 
to create a method of funding the maintenance fund at $25/space.  New Parking suggestions 
include a parking structure, which would be an economic development tool to encourage 
development.    
 
Councilmember McEvers asked how they would recommend management of boat launch 
parking on a computer.  She noted that the one she has seen used the same system as the City of 
Coeur d’Alene has but had them in a different color so they stood out.  Councilmember McEvers 
as what the experts think about enforcement ending at 6:00 p.m.  Ms. Norris noted that in other 
towns enforcement extends later due to restaurant uses, so pushing it to 7:00 p.m. might 
discourage employee parking.  Councilmember English commented that he is a consumer and on 
the Parking Commission, so when he looks at the map and see the red areas (demonstrating a 
parking deficit) are only a block or two from the McEuen parking facility, he believes the hassle 
factor and not enough machines, along with having to walk it back to their vehicle might be 



6 

 
 

 Council Minutes May 17, 2016                 Page               

discouraging the use of the McEuen facility.  Mayor Widmyer noted that there is a current deficit 
in the core area and the only option to increase 221 spaces is to add decks to existing lots or tear 
down existing buildings for parking.  Ms. Norris noted that the creation of a walkable area 
without surface lots benefits everyone, and are prime development locations.  The way to bring 
parking into City control would be a structured parking facility that would satisfy development 
needs.  Ms. Norris reviewed shared use parking throughout the downtown and noted that they are 
an important step.  Councilmember Miller felt that the City would benefit from the use of 
entering license plates and use of the handhelds and asked if the Diamond managed parking lots 
were included in the study.  Ms. Norris clarified that the privately owned lots managed by 
Diamond are not included in city controlled parking counts, as they can be sold and close at any 
time.  Councilmember English noted that he attended the stakeholder meetings, and said that 
employee shuttles did not come up so he wondered if we have the population to support it.  Ms. 
Norris explained that shuttle services have not worked very well as seen throughout the states 
and provided several examples of systems established but never used.  Mayor Widmyer asked 
Ms. Norris which recommendation she would recommend the City focus on first.  Ms. Norris 
recommended signage, but felt it might be tied with changes in the parking meters.      
   
DISCUSSION REGARDING MOBILE VENDOR CODE PROPOSAL 
 
STAFF REPORT:  Municipal Services Director Renata McLeod reviewed the history of the 
two years that staff has been researching mobile vendor codes.  She noted that they have had 
stakeholders meetings and have provided e-mail updates seeking input throughout the process.  
Ms. McLeod explained the five categories of permitting proposed to be as follows: 

• Class A: Permanent Mobile– a moveable unit, not permanently mounted on a foundation, 
but placed for more than 180 days at one location;  

• Class B: Temporary Mobile Food/Beverage Concession  - 180 days or less in one 
location, can move to another location under new permit throughout the year;  

• Class C: Mobile Food Concession– no more than 15 minutes at any location;  
• Class D: Temporary  Mobile, Non-food Concessions– Sale of goods/services/other than 

food/beverage less than 180 days within calendar year; must be on commercial property;  
• Class E: Special Event Concessions - No more than 3 consecutive days at one location, 

not more than 20 days in a calendar year.   
 
Ms. McLeod reiterated that the City has been providing updates to the stakeholders as they 
become available and felt that it was important to get direction from the City Council before 
moving further along in code development.    
  
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember Edinger asked if there was a rush to complete this code.  Ms. 
McLeod noted that there is not a rush; however, there are public safety concerns from staff that 
should be addressed sooner rather than later.  Councilmember McEvers asked for clarification 
regarding change of use.  Community Planning Director Hilary Anderson explained that the 
property owner generally initiates a change of use discussion with the City as they are seeking out 
what codes apply to their new use.  She noted that there would be a complementary project review 
held on Thursday for a food court proposal for property located on Best Avenue.  Councilmember 
McEvers asked if there would be any room for flexing codes to make the food court work. Ms. 
Anderson noted that there might be some planning-related codes that could flex; however, there will 



7 

 
 

 Council Minutes May 17, 2016                            Page                        

be other departments, such as fire, that will not be able to flex their codes.   Mayor Widmyer noted 
that the code should be fair and cover health and safety concerns.  Ms. McLeod noted that staff sent 
out the draft code to 24 vendors and received six responses back; including one comment from the 
Spokane Food Truck Association stating that the code was awesome and they thanked the City. She 
noted that staff was looking for direction on seating, fencing, hours of operation, and Council’s 
comfort level of movement of 500’.  Councilmember Gookin stated that he believes that the code 
should be for food courts and not mobile vendors as the code tries to cover both, such as a site plan 
requirements being provided by a mobile vendor, which should really be required from the food 
court/property owner.  He suggested that staff separate the code between those two categories.  Fire 
Inspector Craig Etherton noted that the concept of the food courts has begun to build after staff 
started this process.  Staff considered that mobile vendors can move; however, there are vendors 
that have been at their location for years, taking up permanent residence.  Staff discussed how are 
they different from a latte stand that has been required to come in for a project review and meet 
current permanent use codes.  He reiterated that they are not trying to push business out, but they do 
not fit within building and fire codes.  Staff is trying to create a code to cover where current codes 
are lacking.  Councilmember Edinger asked if the Fire Department does any current inspections.  
Inspector Etherton noted that they only inspect the vendors at special events.  Councilmember 
Edinger asked if there would be a fee.  Ms. McLeod noted that the fee would be set based on staff 
time involved, would cover those costs, and be an annual permit.  She noted that current codes are 
available for permanent commercial uses such as a food court and it is a separate code.  Staff will 
know more specifically what code development is needed for food courts after Thursday’s meeting.  
Additionally, she clarified that staff needs to know if they are moving in the right direction.  
 
Councilmember Edinger asked if there would be any harm if they tabled this item to the next 
Council meeting, to give time to staff to gather information from Thursday’s meeting and report 
back to Council.  Councilmember Miller wanted staff to look at the 180-day allowance and 
suggested that it should be a shorter period.  She noted that if they are mobile, they should move 
sooner and if they are a food court they should be treated as permanent.   Councilmember Gookin 
noted that the biggest issue at the stakeholder meeting was the 180-day constraint and he did not 
think the timeframe of the use was important.  Staff has stated that the permanent use should be 
paying the sewer cap fees.  If they are within the food court, the property owner would responsible 
for the fees and it would not matter how long the mobile units are there.  Councilmember Gookin 
felt that the City should not make the vendors responsible for improvements to the property, and 
suggested this could possibly be regulated through a special use permit.  Ms. McLeod reiterated that 
there is no current code that allows the Fire Department to inspect the temporary mobile units.  This 
means there may still be a need to have a code that provides staff tools for those areas currently 
lacking in code.  Mr. Etherton provided an example of a mobile vendor that had a mobile unit 
custom built with a fryer unit; however, no one explained the need for a commercial hood and there 
was no code for him to require it, leaving an unsafe environment.  He reiterated that he would like 
to have a code available to help provide direction to those calling in seeking our regulations. 
Councilmember McEvers said that he thinks that there are two different items trying to be regulated 
and that the property owner, through a mobile food court, should be regulated and possibly look at it 
as a zone in itself.  Councilmember Gookin suggested there be several levels for a food court so that 
a court with one vendor could be simple compared to one with five vendors.   
 



8 

 
 

 Council Minutes May 17, 2016                 Page               

MOTION:  Motion by Edinger, seconded by McEvers to bring this item back to the next Council 
meeting with additional information regarding food courts.   Motion carried with Gookin voting 
no.  
 
RECESS:  The Mayor called for a 5-minute recess at 8:38 p.m.  The meeting resumed at 8:49 
p.m.  

Council Bill No. 16-1010 
Ordinance 3538 

 
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 13.12.010 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, ENTITLED “PRIVIES; 
RESTRICTIONS;” ADDING A NEW SECTION 13.12.010 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF 
THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, ENTITLED 
“PORTABLE TOILETS; REGULATIONS;” PROVIDING REGULATIONS FOR THE 
LOCATION AND MAINTENANCE OF PORTABLE TOILETS; REQUIRING A PERMIT 
FOR THE USE AND PLACEMENT OF PORTABLE TOILETS, AND EXCEPTIONS TO THE 
PERMIT REQUIREMENT; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS OF RELEVANT TERMS; 
PROVIDING STANDARDS FOR THE LOCATION, ORIENTATION, AND SCREENING OF 
PORTABLE TOILETS; DECLARING PORTABLE TOILETS PLACED, USED, OR 
MAINTAINED IN VIOLATION OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE ORDINANCE TO BE A 
PUBLIC NUISANCE; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A 
SUMMARY OF THE ORDINANCE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
THEREOF. 
 
STAFF REPORT:  Ms. Anderson noted that this item was discussed with Council in January 
and March with a public hearing at the Planning Commission in April.  The proposed code is 
intended to preserve and protect the health, safety, and general welfare of persons and property 
within the City.  She clarified permits would not be required for community uses, special 
events/private functions, construction projects and public use on public property. Permits would 
be required for commercial seasonal use (less than 180 days), and Ms. Anderson reviewed the 
application information required.  There would be setbacks and porta potties would not be 
located within swales, and orientation away from residential areas and screening would be 
required.    
 
DISCUSSION: Councilmember Gookin asked for clarity regarding use at public transit sites.  
Ms. Anderson noted that the intent was for the Riverstone site; however, the City could approve 
other transit sites.   Councilmember McEvers asked if this would allow for permanent portable 
toilets.  Ms. Anderson clarified that the maximum number of days the code allows on a site is 
180 days and the exemptions, such as city parks, would be able to use it year round.  
Councilmember Gookin said that he does not think the use is classy, and when there is a 
restroom available, people would choose the restroom.   Mayor Widmyer noted that he considers 
the season for Coeur d’Alene to be 90 days, and thinks the code should be shorter than 180 days.  
Councilmember McEvers felt that 180 days gives more wiggle room for the use.  
Councilmember Gookin felt that they should not have porta potties in downtown and asked if 
screening would be required at the beer garden.  Ms. Anderson confirmed that porta potties 



9 

 
 

 Council Minutes May 17, 2016                            Page                        

would have to be screened for all uses.  Councilmember English felt that 180 days is two seasons 
and would recommend 120 days.   Councilmember Miller agreed that 120 days was better than 
180 days.  Ms. Anderson reminded them that the permit would need to be approved by the City, 
so the City does have the option to deny permits.  Councilmember Edinger agrees with 
Councilmember Gookin that he does not believe porta potties fit in Coeur d’Alene and should be 
limited to 90 days.   
 
Motion by Edinger to amend the code to allow for 90 day rather than 180 days, died for lack of a 
second.   
 
MOTION:  Motion by Miller, seconded by English, to amend the code to allow for 120 day 
rather than 180 days.   
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember Gookin explained that he will oppose this code and does not 
like that the City exempts themselves from the code.  Councilmember McEvers expressed that he 
would not vote for amendment, as he does not believe 120 days is not long enough.  
Councilmember Edinger asked how this code would affect vendors.  Ms. Anderson explained 
that that the vendors would be allow apply for a porta potties permit and be regulated to 120 
days. 
 
ROLL CALL:  English Aye; Edinger No; Miller Aye; McEvers No; Gookin No; Evans Aye. 
Motion carried with the Mayor voting in the affirmative. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by Evans, seconded by Miller, to pass the first reading of Council Bill No. 
16-1010.   
 
ROLL CALL:  English Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers No; Gookin No; Evans Aye. 
Motion carried. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin, to suspend the rules and to adopt 
Council Bill 16-1010 by its having had one reading by title only. 
 
ROLL CALL:  English Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye.  
Motion carried. 
 
(QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING)  ZC-1-16: PROPOSED ZONE CHANGE FROM MH-8 
TO R-12, 3045 N. FRUITLAND LANE, APPLICANT:  GT, LLC.  
 
STAFF REPORT:   Planner Mike Behary explained that the applicant has requested a zone 
change from Mobile Home at 8 units per acre to Residential at 12 units per acre.   The property is 
a portion of a parcel fronting 3045 Fruitland Lane and is approximately .91 acres.  He provided 
maps depicting the location of the property, surrounding zoning and land uses.  The findings 
needed tonight include the following:  that this proposal is or is not in conformance with the 
comprehensive plan policies; that the public facilities and utilities are or are not available and 
adequate for the proposed use; that the physical characteristics of the site do or do not make it 
suitable for the request at this time; and that the proposal would or would not adversely affect the 



10 

 
 

 Council Minutes May 17, 2016                 Page               

surrounding neighborhood with regard to traffic, neighborhood character and or existing land 
use.  Mr. Behary reviewed the applicable Comprehensive Plan sections and staff input regarding 
the finding categories.  
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember Gookin asked if there were any concern with a residential zone 
being near the commercial zone.  Mr. Behary noted there is some buffering of residential 
between the commercial zone.   
Mayor Widmyer called for public comments and the Clerk conducted the oath for each of those 
testifying.   
 
APPLICANT:  Drew Ditman, noted that he is representing the applicant.  He noted that the site 
is approximately one acre and is located a couple blocks north of Neider Avenue on Fruitland 
Lane. He applicant would like to do a pocket house project at that site.  He noted that they 
received unanimous approval by the Planning Commission.  
 
Public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by McEvers, seconded by Edinger to approve ZC-1-16: Proposed Zone 
Change from MH-8 to R-12, 3045 N. Fruitland Lane, Applicant GT, LLC, and to make the 
necessary Findings and Order.   
 
ROLL CALL:  Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; English Aye; Edinger Aye. 
Motion carried. 
 
(LEGISLATIVE HEARING) INTENT TO EXCHANGE REAL PROPERTY AND SET A 
MINIMUM VALUE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 201 HARRISON AVENUE WITH 
LAND ABUTTING ATLAS AVENUE  
 
STAFF REPORT:   Finance Director Troy Tymesen explained that this hearing is required 
under Idaho code.  He noted that the old library is the parcel of land that is being proposed to 
trade with land abutting Atlas Avenue.  At a February 2, 2016 Council workshop the Council 
deemed the property located at 201 Harrison Avenue as surplus and directed staff to move 
forward with the land trade of the property.  St. Vincent de Paul has acquired land on Atlas 
Road, which is needed for the development of Fire Station No. 4.  The price for the land trade 
was negotiated at an appraised value of $525,000.   
 
DISCUSSION:  Councilmember McEvers asked for clarification regarding the value of the 
Harrison Avenue property at $525,000 and the value of land on Atlas Road.   Mr. Tymesen 
clarified that the cash plus the Atlas property land value would equal $525,000.  Councilmember 
Gookin asked if the City was required to do an appraisal of the lot along Atlas Road.  Mr. 
Tymesen stated that they were not and that the rate paid was less than the going price for that 
property.  Mayor Widmyer noted that the bottom line is the City is getting the appraised value 
for the H.E.L.P Center.   
 
Mayor Widmyer called for public comments with none being heard.  Public testimony was 
closed. 



11 

 
 

 Council Minutes May 17, 2016                            Page                        

RESOLUTION NO. 16-027 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
IDAHO, AUTHORIZING AN EXCHANGE OF REAL PROPERTY WITH ST. 
VINCENT DE PAUL SALVAGE BUREAU, INC., D/B/A ST. VINCENT DE PAUL 
NORTH IDAHO, OF CITY PROPERTY LOCATED AT 201 E. HARRISON AVENUE 
FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY OWNED BY ST. VINCENT DE PAUL SALVAGE 
BUREAU, INC., D/B/A ST. VINCENT DE PAUL NORTH IDAHO SITUATED IN THE 
CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, STATE OF IDAHO. 
 
MOTION:  Motion by Miller, seconded by McEvers to approve the Resolution No. 16-027, 
approving a Land Exchange Agreement for the exchange of real property located at 201 Harrison 
Avenue with land abutting Atlas Avenue with St. Vince De Paul Salvage Bureau, Inc. DBA St. 
Vincent de Paul North Idaho. 
 
ROLL CALL:  McEvers Aye; Gookin No; Evans Aye; English Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye.  
Motion carried. 
 
RECESS:  Motion by Edinger, seconded by McEvers to recess to Thursday, May 19, 2016 8:00 
a.m. in the Old City Council Chambers located within City Hall at 710 E. Mullan Avenue, for a 
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Annual Appropriation Budget Workshop.  Motion carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:42 p.m. 
 
   
      _____________________________ 
ATTEST:     Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, CMC, City Clerk  



Continued Meeting Minutes 05/19/16  1 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF A CONTINUED MEETING OF THE CITY   
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO, 
HELD IN THE OLD COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

710 E. Mullan Avenue, Coeur d’Alene 
 

May 19, 2016 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene met in a continued session of said 
Council in the Council Chambers on May 19, 2016, at 8:00 a.m., there being present 
upon roll call the following members: 
 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Loren Ron Edinger, Woody McEvers, Kiki Miller (arrived at 8:10 a.m.), Dan Gookin, 
Daniel English (arrived at 9:27 a.m.), Amy Evans (via telephone conference)  
 
STAFF PRESENT: Melissa Tosi, Human Resource Director; Gordon Dobler, 
Engineering Services Director; Steve Childers, Police Captain; Dave Hagar, Police 
Captain; Troy Tymesen, Finance Director; Terry Pickel, Water Superintendent; Mike 
Gridley, City Attorney; Tim Martin, Street Superintendent; Jim Hammond, City 
Administrator; Sid Fredrickson, Wastewater Superintendent; Bill Greenwood, Parks & 
Recreation Director; Kenny Gabriel, Fire Chief; Hilary Anderson, Community Planning 
Director; Bette Ammon, Library Director; Ed Wagner, Building Services Director; Kyle 
Marine, Assistant Water Superintendent; Tom Greif, Division Fire Chief; Renata 
McLeod, Municipal Services Director 
 
GUEST:  Pat McGaughey, CPF, IOM with Activating People.Com 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Widmyer called the meeting to order. 
 
APPLICATION FOR TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES PROGRAM 
GRANT FUNDING (TAP) FOR THE RIVER TRAIL 
 
Bill Greenwood, Parks & Recreation Director, presented a request for council 
authorization to pursue Transportation Alternative Projects (TAP) Funding for 
construction of the River Trail.  The River Trail would begin in Riverstone, with a 
connector to the Prairie Trail, along the railroad right-of-way, and would skip the Grand 
Mill area by the Mill River Park and pick up again on River Way and continue on to 
Huetter.  Mr. Green indicated that they may have to do some striping on the roadway to 
connect with Seltice Way project.   
 



Continued Meeting Minutes 05/19/16  2 

Mr. Greenwood said this section of the trail would cost $146,000 and would include a 
parking lot for a cost of $183,000. The total cost of the project is $691,000 -- TAP funds 
to be used are $484,000 and the City’s match is $207,000, which would come out of the 
City’s General Fund balance.  
 
Mayor Widmyer explained that the request was being brought forward at this time 
because the application needs to be submitted by June 1st.  The request is for 
authorization to submit the application, not for approval of the city’s portion of the 
funding.  If the grant is awarded, Mr. Greenwood would bring a request back to the 
council for funding of the project.  Mr. Greenwood said they are hoping for funding in 
2017 and construction in 2018. 
 
Councilmember Gookin asked if the trail was included in the BLM/4 Corners Master 
Plan.  Mr. Greenwood said that it wasn’t, but when the railroad right-of-way was 
purchased, the plan all along was to create a trail system.  Details would still need to be 
worked out.   
 
Councilmember Gookin asked if the trail would interfere with railroad access.  City 
Attorney Mike Gridley said that as long as the railroad is there, the City would need to 
provide a corridor of 18 feet and would have to put up a fence.     
 
MOTION by Gookin, seconded by Edinger, to authorize staff to proceed with the 
TAP grant request process for the River Trail project.    
 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
STRATEGIC BUDGET PLANNING 
Pat McGaughey, CPF, IOM, with Activating People.Com facilitated a strategic planning 
discussion with the council members and Executive Team.   
 
Mr. McGaughey led a discussion of goals and issues of importance to the Executive 
Team and council, including community engagement, software, measuring success, 
continuous improvement, internal engagement and trust between council and staff, 
tracking, and CDA 2030 priorities.  The discussion included a review of what each 
department is doing well and some of the things that each department does that the public 
might not be aware of. 
 
Councilmember Evans left the meeting at 10:44 a.m. 
 
The Executive team discussed anticipated major changes to their Fiscal Year 2016-17 
budgets, including changes to their services & supplies budgets and the addition of 
personnel.  Major items discussed included Fire Station 4 and staffing; capital 
improvements to the Wastewater Treatment plant (Enterprise Fund); an additional 9 
FTE’s in the Police Department, plus equipment for the additional officers; the City Hall 



Continued Meeting Minutes 05/19/16  3 

remodel; a new Permit Technician in the Building Department and vehicles; live 
streaming for City Council meetings; new cameras for the CDATV Studio; an IT 
Network Analysis specialist for the Police Department; a part-time CDBG grants 
administrator /part-time administrative assistant; a new water storage tank in the NE 
Quadrant; and a new Classification and Compensation Study. 
 
Councilmember Gookin noted that he would like to see Rosenberry Drive done and 
parking improved as part of the Flood Works project.  Mr. Dobler said that Rosenberry 
Drive is not critical to the certification process and was not completed due to budget 
constraints, but he will look into it. 
 
The council and Executive Team next discussed impediments to providing excellent 
service. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by Edinger that, there being no further 
business, this meeting is adjourned.  Motion carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 12:02 p.m.. 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Amy C. Ferguson 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 



General Services Committee Meeting 05/23/16  Page 1 of 5 

May 23, 2016 
GENERAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 
12:00 p.m., Library Community Room 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS  STAFF  
Council Member Ron Edinger, Chairperson Juanita Knight, Senior Legal Assistant 
Council Member Kiki Miller  Melissa Tosi, Human Resources Director  
Council Member Amy Evans  Dennis Grant, Engineering  
 Renata McLeod, Municipal Services Director 
CITIZENS  Randy Adams, Deputy City Attorney  
 Hilary Anderson, Planning Director  
 Troy Tymesen, Finance Director  
 Tim Martin, Streets Superintendent  
 
 
Item 1.  Approval of Amendments to City’s Classification and Compensation Plan.  
(Resolution No. 16-029) 
 
Melissa Tosi, Human Resource Director, explained in her staff report that the Library IT Coordinator position 
has evolved over the years with the increased demands of the larger Library.  The IT Coordinators 
responsibility has shifted from a variety of clerical duties to technical duties related to the development, 
operation and maintenance of library equipment and software.  The position also focuses on coordinating 
software and hardware updates for the Library which is common for a technician.  This original job description 
was drafted when the IT Coordinator was only responsible for six (6) computers.  At the current Library and 
based on the amount of services provided, the position is responsible for fifty (50) computers. 
 
In December 2015, the position of Administrative Support Specialist II was vacated in the Planning 
Department.  Due to the vacant position, it gave our Community Planning Director an opportunity to re-
evaluate the needs of the Planning Department.  The most needed area of assistance is in the review and 
processing of residential building permits.  The Planning Technician position will be less clerical and more 
planning specific.  The position will review building permit applications for compliance and zoning standards, 
review legal descriptions, conduct research and analyze data, assist customers with basic planning and zoning 
questions and help with special projects.   
 
Mrs. Tosi said the proposed Personnel Rule amendments will be posted a minimum of ten (10) consecutive 
days before the City Council meeting. Additionally, BDPA reviewed both positions and recommends the 
Planning Technician be placed at a pay grade 9 and the Library IT Coordinator be increased from a pay grade 8 
to a pay grade 9.  
 
Mrs. Tosi added that the Planning Department will be able to absorb the 6% increase in leveling for fiscal year 
2015-2016 due to wage savings of the Administrative Support Specialist II position being vacated since 
December 2015.  The reclassification (6% increase) of the IT Coordination position will also be absorbed in the 
current fiscal year’s budget due to wage savings from other Library positions remaining vacant.   
 



General Services Committee Meeting 05/23/16  Page 2 of 5 

Council Member Miller asked when the IT Coordinator position will take effect. Mrs. Tosi said after it is 
approved by Council.  
 
MOTION: by Evans, seconded by Miller, to recommend that Council adopt Resolution NO. 16-029 
authorizing the Classification and Compensation Plan amendments as presented. Motion Carried. 
 
 
Item 2.  V-16-3 Vacation of the 20’ Public Sewer Easement in the Crossroads Subdivision.  
(CB 16-1012) 
 
Dennis Grant, Engineering Project Coordinator, is requesting the vacation of a portion of a 20’ public sewer 
easement located in Lot G of Block 1 of the Crossroads Subdivision. Mr. Grant noted in his staff report that the 
public sewer easement on the subject property was originally installed with the Zanetti Subdivision in 2009 
and then kept in place on the Crossroads Subdivision in 2013. The sewer main has been relocated and is no 
longer in the existing easement.  
 
MOTION: by Miller, seconded by Evans, to recommend that Council proceed with the vacation process 
for a portion of a 20’ public sewer easement located in Lot G of Block 1 of the Crossroads Subdivision, 
as outline in Idaho Code Section 50-1306, and set a public hearing for June 7, 2016. Motion Carried.  
 
 
Item 3.   Approval of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Allocation via Subrecipient 
Agreements to St. Vincent de Paul and The Boys and Girls Club.  
(Resolution No. 16-028) 
 
Renata McLeod, Municipal Services Director, is asking Council to authorize two items (1) a Subrecipient 
Agreement with St. Vincent de Paul in the amount totaling $350,000 for the purchase of the H.E.L.P Center 
located at 201 E. Harrison Avenue, (2) a Subrecipient Agreement with the Boys and Girls Club in the amount of 
$37,000 for the engineering and architectural costs toward their Coeur d’Alene facility.   
 
Mrs. McLeod explained in her staff report that on February 16, 2016 the City held a public hearing to amend 
the CDBG Plan Year 2014/2015 block grant allocations.  Within that amendment Council approved the award 
of funds to St. Vincent de Paul in the amount of $162,840.00 from Plan Year 2015 and $187,160  from Plan 
Year 2016 totaling $350,000 toward the purchase of the H.E.L.P. Center located at 201 Harrison Avenue.  
Additionally, an award of funds from Plan Year 2014 in the amount of $37,000 to the Boys and Girls Club for 
engineering and architectural costs for their Coeur d’Alene facility.  Please note it is staffs intent to propose the 
allocation within Plan Year 2017 to the Boys and Girls Club for an additional $83,000 for a total grant allocation 
of $120,000. 
 
Council Member Miller asked for clarification on how the funds get allocated. Mrs. McLeod said the funds are 
allocated annually and those are funds provided by HUD directly to the City. The budget is set up through 
action plans for each year, adopted by the Council after a thirty day public comment period. There was a 
substantial amendment that allowed for the use of prior year funding. The funds for 2017 have not yet been 
allocated.  
 
Council Member Miller asked for clarification of the application and awards process documentation. Mrs. 
McLeod said they have a formal and informal process that is allowable by HUD.  Approximately rvery 2 years 
we go out for a formal application requirement. For the 2015 community grants funds, the entity awarded 



General Services Committee Meeting 05/23/16  Page 3 of 5 

those funds were no longer eligible to use the money as they changed their plans from what they submitted in 
their grant application. Then, those funds were award through an informal process.  
 
Council Member Miller asked how funding can be allocated for 2017. Mrs. McLeod said in 2017 staff will come 
forward with an action plan and that will set up the budget. At that time they will include the Boys and Girls 
club allocation and host a public workshop to take input. Any remainder funds will be allocated for  
competitive community grant opportunities.  
 
Council Member Miller asked how the informal process works. Mrs. McLeod said an entity may contact the 
City directly, City staff may know of a need, or a Council Member can come forward with a need.  Each 
substantial request will always come forward through a formal process of a public hearing and before Council 
for approval.  Council always has the authority to say what they want fund allocated to.   
 
Council Member Miller asked if the funding cannot be used for new construction, how is it being used for the 
Boys and Girls Club. Mrs. McLeod said it is being used for planning and for infrastructure, just not brick and 
mortar construction.  
 
Council Member Miller asked how people find out about these funds. Mrs. McLeod said they do outreach as 
much as they can, they go to the Region I Homeless Coalition meetings, the City’s website, etc.  For the two-
year formal process they put a notice in the paper, send out emails to a group of about 97 people, etc.  
 
Council Member Evans asked if the Boys and Girls club will put in an application for the additional funding in 
2017. Mrs. McLeod said that was not the intent at this time. When this request came forward to Council 
through the substantial amendment, staff made it clear that was the intent for the Boys and Girls Club and 
staff did not hear any feedback to do it otherwise. So, this will be proposed in the action plan. If, at that time, 
Council directs staff to do it another way, it can be done.  
 
Council Member Evans asked if other agencies could ask for funding in 2017 without an application. Mrs. 
McLeod confirmed that the informal process is always available, but whether or not there is funding available 
is another issue.    
 
Council Member Miller asked if funding can be used for City projects. Mrs. McLeod said yes, it could; however,  
it has to be a direct benefit to LMI (low to moderate income).  However, the requirements would be very strict.   
 
Council Member Edinger asked if anyone else has asked for funding. Mrs. McLeod said not out of prior plan 
years but for 2016 we have a request from Lake City Center and it is programmed in the action plan. Staff will 
be coming back with an agreement with Lake City Center at a later day.  
 
MOTION: by Evans, seconded by Miller, to recommend that Council adopt Resolution No. 16-028 
authorizing Subrecipient Agreements with St. Vincent de Paul for the purchase of the HELP Center 
located at 201 E. Harrison Avenue and authorizing a Subrecipient Agreement with the Boys and Girls 
Club for the engineering and architectural costs towards their Coeur d'Alene facility. Motion Carried. 
 
 



General Services Committee Meeting 05/23/16  Page 4 of 5 

Item 4.   Approval of Agreement with Syringa property Management for Management of 106  
  Homestead Avenuex.  
(Resolution No. 16-028) 
 
Mrs.  McLeod is asking Council to ratify a Property Management Agreement with Syringa Property 
Management, Inc. for units located at 106 Homestead Avenue and termination of a Lease Agreement with St. 
Vincent de Paul of North Idaho previously authorized by Resolution No. 11-017. 
 
Mrs. McLeod explained in her staff report that at the February 15, 2011 City Council meeting the City Council 
authorized staff to complete a land acquisition of existing Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) units located 
106 Homestead Avenue based on the goal outlined in the 2006 Housing Needs Assessment to support 
affordable housing.  In collaboration with St. Vincent de Paul it was thought that management of the 7-unit 
adjacent to their HUD 811 development would be reasonable.  At this time St. Vincent de Paul has requested 
termination of the Lease and provided a thirty day notice to end the management of the property, as it did not 
work within their resources to manage the LIHTC property.  Since this property is a LIHTC, Idaho Housing and 
Finance Association serves as the regulatory agency and provided a list of authorized property managers that 
the City can contract with, which have experience with LIHTC.  Since this was a tight timeline to bring on an 
additional property manager and seek quotes from three entities, the City had to enter into an agreement with 
Syringa Property Management prior to the June 7, 2016 Council meeting.  Syringa provided a great proposal 
and will be able to provide the City with approximately $15,000 a year in revenue, while continuing to meet 
the affordable housing goal and LIHTC regulations.  Additionally, this provided an opportunity to include 
preference points for victims of domestic violence that are referred by Safe Passage.     
 
Council Member Miller said she used to seeing this type of lease based on a percentage of the rental income 
but it looks like this is a flat monthly rate. Mrs. McLeod said there is a section that talks about setting up a 
maintenance fund. Under that section it refers to the revenue payments back to the City. Once the 
maintenance fund is set up and established (which may take a couple of years to establish), any income above 
that will come to the City.   
 
Council Member Miller said she is concerned with the City entering into another lease that does not allow us 
to capitalize on the property.  She voiced concern with language regarding Syringa staff being allowed to live 
on site.  She asked staff to take a closer look at the revenue language to ensure the lease is fair to the 
occupant, Syringa Property Management, as well as the City.  Mrs. McLeod said she can work on some 
clarifying language.  
 
Council Member Miller feels that the financial analysis might need a closer look before this lease is approved.  
 
Mrs. McLeod reminded the Council that this is a ratification request. Because they had to have a property 
manager in line with IHFA, the city  had to enter into this agreement and have a manger established by May 
21, 2016. However, an amendment to the lease  could be made, if needed. 
 
Council Member Miller asked that, at the least, staff should look at this lease when the renewal is up to 
evaluate how things are going. 
 



General Services Committee Meeting 05/23/16  Page 5 of 5 

CONDITION OF APPROVAL: Council Member Miller asked that at the first renewal of this lease, staff review for 
revenue stream back, current rates, and operating procedures.       
 
MOTION: by Miller, seconded by Evans, to recommend that Council adopt Resolution No. 16-028 
ratifying a Property Management Agreement with Syringa Property Management, Inc. for units 
located at 106 Homestead Avenue and authorize the termination of a Lease Agreement with St. 
Vincent de Paul of North Idaho, previously authorized by Resolution No. 11-017, with the CONDITION 
that at the first renewal, staff take a look at the revenue stream back, current rates, and operating 
procedures. Motion Carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:45 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Juanita Knight  
Recording Secretary 



 
 
 
DATE:  JUNE 7, 2016 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: RENATA MCLEOD, CITY CLERK 
 
RE:  SETTING OF PUBLIC HEARING DATE: JUNE 21, 2016 
 
 
I am requesting the City Council set a public hearing for the Council meeting scheduled June 
21, 2016, to hear public testimony regarding fee increases related to Garbage rates and 
establishing a new fee for a portable toilet permit.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Resolution No. 16-028 1 | P a g e  
   

RESOLUTION NO. 16-028 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
IDAHO, AUTHORIZING THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED CONTRACTS AND OTHER 
ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE:  ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS, 
AND APPROVAL OF MAINTENANCE/WARRANTY AGREEMENT AND SECURITY 
FOR LAKE FOREST WEST 1ST AND 2ND ADDITIONS (S-1-14.M); APPROVAL OF A 
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT WITH ST. VINCENT DE PAUL FOR COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) ALLOCATIONS FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
THE H.E.L.P. CENTER; APPROVAL OF SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT WITH THE BOYS 
AND GIRLS CLUB FOR A COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 
ALLOCATION FOR ARCHITECT AND ENGINEERING COSTS; AND RATIFICATION OF 
AGREEMENT WITH SYRINGA PROPERTY MANAGEMENT FOR MANAGEMENT OF 
106 HOMESTEAD AND TERMINATION OF A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH ST. VINCENT 
DE PAUL OF NORTH IDAHO FOR 106 HOMESTEAD AVENUE, COEUR D’ALENE, 
IDAHO, PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED BY RESOLUTION NO. 11-017. 
         

WHEREAS, it has been recommended that the City of Coeur d’Alene enter into the 
contract(s), agreement(s) or other actions listed below pursuant to the terms and conditions set 
forth in the contract(s), agreement(s) and other action(s) documents attached hereto as Exhibits 
“A through D” and by reference made a part hereof as summarized as follows: 

 
A) Acceptance of Improvements, and Approval of Maintenance/Warranty Agreement 

and Security for Lake Forest West 1st and 2nd Additions (S-1-14.m); 
 
B) Approval of a Subrecipient Agreement with St. Vincent de Paul for Community 

development Block Grant (CDBG) Allocations for the purchase of the H.E.L.P. 
Center; 

 
C) Approval of Subrecipient Agreement with the Boys and Girls Club for a 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Allocation for architect and 
engineering costs; 

 
D) Ratification of Agreement with Syringa Property Management for Management 

of 106 Homestead and termination of a lease agreement with St. Vincent de Paul 
of North Idaho for 106 Homestead Avenue, Coeur d’Alene, Idaho, previously 
authorized by Resolution No. 11-017; 

 
AND; 
 
WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the 

citizens thereof to enter into such agreements or other actions; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, 



Resolution No. 16-028 2 | P a g e  
   

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the 
City enter into agreements or other actions for the subject matter, as set forth in substantially the 
form attached hereto as Exhibits "A through D" and incorporated herein by reference with the 
provision that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City Attorney are hereby authorized to modify 
said agreements or other actions so long as the substantive provisions of the agreements or other 
actions remain intact. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby 
authorized to execute such agreements or other actions on behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 7th day of June, 2016.   
 

 
                                        
                                   Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
      
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS  Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER ENGLISH  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 





AGREEMENT FOR MAINTENANCE^ruARRANry OF SUBDIVISION WORK
Lake Foresl west 1"r Addilion Subdivision

THIS AGREEI,,IENT made lhis day of June, 20'16 between Lake Forest, LLC, with Delbert L. Kerr,
Member, whose address is Lake Forest, LLC, 975 W. Honeysuckle, Hayden, lD, 83835, hereinafter referred to as
the "Developer," and the city of Coeur d'Alene, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the state of
ldaho, whose address is City Hall, 710 E. Mullan Avenue, Coeur d Alene, lD 83814, hereinafter referred lo as the
"city';

wHEREAS, the City has previously approved the final subdivision platof Lake Forestwest l"rAddition, a
thirty five (35) lot, residential development in Coeur d'Alene, situaled in the wesl % of the soulhwest quarter
Section 26, Township 51 North, Range 4 Wesl, B.M., Kootenai County, ldaho; and

WHEREAS, the Developer completed the installation of certain public improvemenls in the noted
subdivision as required by Title 16 of the Coeur d'Alene N'lunicipal Code and is required to warranl and mainlain
the improvements for one year; NOW, THEREFORE,

IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS

The Developer agrees to maintain and warrant for a period of one year from the approval dateof lhrs
agreemeni, the public improvements as shown on lhe construction plans enlitled "Lake Forest West 1'' Addrlion -

Construction Drawings, dated June 10, 2015, signed and slamped by D.ew C. Dittman, PE, # '11138, whose address
is Lake City Engineering, lnc.. 3909 N. Schreiber Way, S!ite ll4, Coeur d'Alene, lD 838'15, including but not limited
to: sanilary sewer main line and lateral services, potable water main line and lateral services, stormwater drainage
swales, drywells and appurtenances, concrele curb, concrete sidewalk pedestrian ramps and detectable
warning panels, asphalt pavement and base structure, streel signage, and, street lighting , as required under Title
16 of the Coeur d'Alene L4unicipal Code.

The Developer herewith has provided security wilh lhe City, in the amount of Forty One Thousand Eight
Hundred Forty Five and 00i '100 Dollars ($4'1,845.00) securing the obligation of lhe Developer to marntain and
warrant the public subdivision improvements referred to herein. The security shall not be released unlil lhe 7"' day
of June, 2017. The City lnspeclor will conduct a final inspection prior to the release of lhe security to verify that all
installed improvemenls are undamaged and free from defect. ln the event lhal the improvements made by the
Developerwere not mainlained or became defective during the period set forlh above, ihe City may demand the
funds represented by the security and use the proceeds to complete mainlenance or repair oflhe improvements
lhereof. The Developer further agrees to be responsible for all costs of warranting and mainiaining said
improvements above the amounl of the security given.

Ownefs Reimbursement to the Citv: The Parties further agree that the City has ulilized substanlial staff
lime to prepare lhis agreement, which will benefit the Owner. The Parties further agree the City should be
reimbursed a reasonable fee for ils costs to prepare such agreemenl. The Parties further agree that such fee
should be in the amount of Twenty Five and No/100 Dollars ($25.00).

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have sel their hands and seal the day and year first above written

City of Coeur d'Alene Lake Forest, LLC

Sieve Widmyer, lvlayor

ATTEST

Delbert L. Kerr, Member

Renata Mcleod, City Clerk

Ma nlenance^larranly Agr re: Res # l6-

Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "A"



d5 ?B
a'ss

IF96

8 ',:'g
ts
a

&

a
E

a

€
:I
a
3

g

B

3

tr
ts

c

E

t

;
,

a ;
&

ff

e
g t

E

3

;
I
e

6 t
E

E

q

I E

6

E ?

e

E

I

a
a a l

I

E a a c a a 1

I

E
a

I
a a

E
a

a
a
a

B
a E

E
a

E
a a

c
a

E
a a a a

a
a

E
a

E

t
b

E
E
E
a

a
a a a

$
c
a

a
a

B

a
d
a

a
a

€
a

a
a

ss
a

g
a

s
a

6 r 6
a

F
a

g a
a

E
a

a
a

s
a

Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "A"



AGREEMENT FOR MAINTENANCEMARRANry OF SUBDIVISION WORK
Lake Forest West 2to Addition Subdivision

THIS AGREEMENT made this _ day of June, 2016 between Lake Forest, LLC, with Delbert L. Kerr,
Member, whose address is Lake Forest, LLC, 975 W. Honeysuckle, Hayden, lD, 83835, hereinafter referred to as
the "Developer," and lhe city of Coeur dAlene, a municipal corporation and polilicalsubdivision of lhe state of
ldaho, whose address is City Hall. 710 E. Mullan Avenue, Coeur d'Alene, lD 83814, hereinafler referred lo as lhe
"city';

WHEREAS, lhe City has previously approved the final subdivision plat of Lake Forest West 2d Addition,
a forty nine (49) lot, residential development in Coour d'Aleno, situaled in the wost % of the southwest quarler
Section 26, Iownship 51 Norlh, Range 4 West, B.l/l , Kootenai County, ldaho; and

The Developer agrees to maintain and warrant for a period of one year from the approval dale of lhrs
agreement, the public improvemenls as shown on the construclion plans entitled 'Lake Forest Wesl 2m Addtron -
Conslruclion Drawings, dated October 6, 2015, signed and stamped by Drew C- Ditlman, PE, # 11138, whose
address is Lake City Engineering, lnc.. 3909 N. Schreiber Way, Suile lr4, Coeur d'Alene, lD 83815, including but
not limited to: sanitary sewer main line and laleral services, potable water main line and lateral services,
stormwater drainage swalos, dry,lvells and appurtenances, concrele curb, concrete sidewalk w/ pedeslrian ramps
and detectable warning panels, asphalt pavemeni and base structure, skeet signage, and, streel lighting , as
required under Title 16 of lhe Coeur d'pJene Municipal Code.

The Developer herewilh has provided security wilh the City, in lhe amount of Sixty Two Thousand One
Hundred Sixty Seven and 00/100 Dollars ($62,167.00) securing lhe obligation of the Developer to marnlarn ancl
warrant lhe public subdivision improvements referred lo herein. The security shall nol be released unlil the 7" day
ofJune, 2017. The City lnspector will conduct a final inspection prior to the release oflhe securily to verify that all
installed improvements are undamaged and free from defect. ln the event lhat the improvements made by lhe
Developer were not maintained or became defective during the period set forth above, the City may demand the
funds represented by the security and use the proceeds lo complete maintenance or repair of the improvements
lhereof. The Developer furthea agrees to be responsible for all cosls ofwarranting and maintaining said
improvements above the amount of lhe security grven.

IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS

Owner's Reimbursemont to the Citv: The Parlies further agree lhat the City has utilized subgtantial skff
time to prepare this agreement, which will benefit the Owner. The Parties furlher agree lhe City should be
reimbursed a reasonable fee for its costs lo prepare such agreement. The Parties furlher agree that such fee
should be in lhe amount of Twenty Five and No/l00 Dollars ($25.00).

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands and seal the day and year llrst above written.

Clty of Coeur d'Aene Lak6 Forest, LLC

WHEREAS, lhe Developer completed ihe installalion of certain public improvements in the noled
subdivision as required by Tille 16 of the Coeur d'Alene I\runicipal Code and is required lo warrant and maintain
the improvemenls for one year; NOW, THEREFORE,

Steve Widmyer, Mayor

ATTEST

Delbert L. Kerr. l\,,lember

Renata Mcleod, City Clerk

Maintenance/Waranly Agr. re: R6s.# 16-

Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "A"



.6 a- .!E6 -----!tlob!____-ic6

-
i6I Essl 6

lllrntJ@l

tr -MoT- 15@61 ?

T . ti €tr cr.ml ;--
I r ls rnl! suel r,

ttl
ffiT*
l! irl! ,ts701 n.

Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "A"



i iEi6 -----ir
------]Eit -----i6-

E

@

f

t---tici

@
i---iE

l l Iid.&I

I 

-Tt 

llJ$T
tt z{l l I 2ffiI

s lr 23ml! rsml ,

r '*i -.-

t.diffi;ntu-f--Eis-El

Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "A"



CITY COUNCIL  
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
DATE:   FEBRUARY 16, 2016 
 
FROM: RENATA MCLEOD, CITY CLERK 
 
RE: APPROVAL OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 

ALLOCATION VIA SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENTS TO ST. VINCENT DE 
PAUL AND THE BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB  

  
 
DECISION POINT:   

• To authorize a Subrecipient Agreement with St. Vincent de Paul in the amount totaling 
$350,000 for the purchase of the H.E.L.P Center located at 201 E. Harrison Avenue.  

• To authorize a Subrecipient Agreement with the Boys and Girls Club in the amount of 
$37,000 for the engineering and architectural costs toward their Coeur d’Alene facility.   

 
HISTORY:   On February 16, 2016 the City held a public hearing to amend the CDBG Plan 
Year 2014/2015 block grant allocations.  Within that amendment Council approved the award of 
funds to St. Vincent de Paul in the amount of $162,840.00 from Plan Year 2015 and $187,160  
from Plan Year 2016 totaling $350,000 toward the purchase of the H.E.L.P. Center located at 
201 Harrison Avenue.  Additionally, an award of funds from Plan Year 2014 in the amount of 
$37,000 to the Boys and Girls Club for engineering and architectural costs for their Coeur 
d’Alene facility.  Please note it is staffs intent to propose the allocation within Plan Year 2017 to 
the Boys and Girls Club for an additional $83,000 for a total grant allocation of $120,000. 
 
RECOMMENDATION POINT:   

• To authorize a Subrecipient Agreement with St. Vincent de Paul in the amount totaling 
$350,000 for the purchase of the H.E.L.P Center located at 201 E. Harrison Avenue.  

• To authorize a Subrecipient Agreement with the Boys and Girls Club in the amount of 
$37,000 for the engineering and architectural costs toward their Coeur d’Alene facility.   

 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  1 of 7    E X H I B I T  “ B ”  

AGREEMENT FOR CDBG GRANT FUNDS FOR 

St. Vincent de Paul North Idaho 
 

 This Agreement is entered into between the CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, a municipal 
corporation, whose mailing address is 710 E Mullan Avenue, Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83814-3958, 
hereinafter referred to as the “CITY” and St. Vincent de Paul North Idaho, an Idaho non-profit 
corporation, whose mailing address is: 201 E Harrison Avenue, Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83814-3240, 
hereinafter referred to as “St. Vincent de Paul.” 

The key contact for St. Vincent de Paul is Jeff Conroy, Executive Director.  
 
The key contact for the CITY is Sherri Wastweet, Grant Administrator, Panhandle Area Council, Inc. 
 
1. Activities Under This Agreement.   The CITY has received from the U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development (“HUD”) a grant from the Community Development Block Grant Program, 
identified as Grant No. B-15-MC-16-0007 (the “CDBG Grant”). From this CDBG Grant the CITY is 
awarding $162,840.00 (One hundred sixty-two thousand eight hundred & forty dollars) to St. Vincent 
de Paul to purchase the H.E.L.P. Center facility located in Coeur d’Alene.   
 
The CITY has also received from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) a 
grant from the Community Development Block Grant Program, identified as Grant No. B-16-MC-16-
0007 (the “CDBG Grant”). From this CDBG Grant the CITY is awarding $187,160.00 (One hundred 
eighty-seven thousand one hundred & sixty dollars) to St. Vincent de Paul to purchase the H.E.L.P. 
Center facility located in Coeur d’Alene. The project is more fully described in Attachment A “Scope 
of Work.” 

 
2. Grant Amount and Matching Obligations.  The maximum amount of the CDBG grant funds 
awarded to St. Vincent de Paul under this Agreement is $350,000.00 (Three hundred fifty thousand 
dollars), referred to herein as the “grant funds.”   

 
3.  Budget.   St. Vincent de Paul shall adhere to the Budget outlined in Attachment B attached hereto, 
unless otherwise amended in writing, signed by both St. Vincent de Paul and the CITY.  In the event 
costs exceed these grant funds, St. Vincent de Paul shall be responsible for finding any and all 
additional funds.  The CITY shall not be responsible to provide additional funds to pay any costs in 
excess of $350,000.00 (Three hundred fifty thousand dollars). 

 
4. Payment.  St. Vincent de Paul will submit a detailed, itemized invoice or escrow agreement to the 
CITY’s Grant Administrator, Panhandle Area Council (PAC) 11100 N Airport Drive, Hayden, ID 
83835-9798, for review. The invoice shall be numbered and dated, it shall state the Project, name and 
address to which payment shall be made, and any additional information required by the grant funding 
agency. 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  2 of 7    E X H I B I T  “ B ”  

PAC will verify the information, process the request, and submit the invoice to the CITY for payment.  
Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days after submittal and acceptance by the CITY.   
 
5. Grant Program Requirements. This Agreement and the project is governed by the provisions of 
Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended, Public Law 93-383  and 
the implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 570.  St. Vincent de Paul shall not take any action or do 
anything inconsistent with the purposes and intent of the CDBG program. St. Vincent de Paul shall 
comply with all state and local and federal laws and regulations that pertain to the program and the 
CDBG grant program and funds. 

 
6. Termination of Grant Agreement. The CITY may at any time terminate this Agreement for cause or 
convenience. If terminated for the convenience of the CITY, the CITY shall pay for any work 
completed up the date of the termination. If the CITY terminates this Agreement for cause, the CITY 
will not make any payments for work completed in violation of this agreement.  If for any reason the 
Agreement is terminated, St. Vincent de Paul agrees and acknowledges that the CITY shall bear no 
liability or responsibility of any kind or for any reason to St. Vincent de Paul for any of the funds 
received, to be received, or anticipated to be received pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
7. Financial and Progress Reports.  In the performance of this Agreement, St. Vincent de Paul shall 
keep books, records, and accounts of all of St. Vincent de Paul’s activities related to the provisions of 
this Agreement. At project completion, St. Vincent de Paul shall submit to PAC a financial report that 
details costs incurred by line item as described in the project budget, Attachment B.  Said report shall 
be submitted to PAC upon completion of the project funded under this Agreement.  St. Vincent de Paul 
acknowledges that the CITY is required to submit to HUD interim performance reports and, therefore, 
St. Vincent de Paul agrees to submit to PAC, a performance reports in the format provided by PAC and 
to provide any and all information which the CITY may need or request in preparing the CITY’s 
interim performance reports to HUD.  A detailed written final report with documentation of the 
activities carried out and benefits generated, including income and demographic documentation, shall 
be submitted to PAC at the conclusion of the project. 

 
8. Record Keeping.  St. Vincent de Paul shall keep sufficient records, files, accounting records, and 
documentation to track expenditures and accounting processes, and shall be in accordance with general 
accounting practices useable for auditing. It shall keep records sufficient to document purchases are in 
accordance with procurement policies and track assets.  

 
9. Client Data. Client information collected under this Agreement is private and the use or disclosure 
such information is prohibited when not directly related responsibilities and requirements under this 
Agreement unless written consent is first obtained from the client. 

 
10. Amendments to this Grant Agreement.  St. Vincent de Paul understands and agrees that no change 
shall be made to the nature or purpose of the project and this Agreement, and that no changes shall be 
made in the Scope of Work (Attachment A), the budget (Attachment B), or the design of the project 
without the prior written consent of the CITY.  Either party may initiate an amendment. From time to 
time the CITY may at it discretion amend the contract to reflect changes in the program requirements, 
regulations or law.  



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  3 of 7    E X H I B I T  “ B ”  

 
11. Subcontracts.  St. Vincent de Paul shall seek CITY approval prior to entering into any subcontracts 
under this Agreement. St Vincent de Paul shall notify PAC to request approval by the CITY.  These 
subcontracts shall contain all the requirements of this Agreement. Amendments to subcontracts shall 
have both the CITY’s and St. Vincent de Paul’s approval before they are effective amendments.  All 
contracts and subcontracts must comply with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations. 
 
12. Audit and Monitoring.  St. Vincent de Paul acknowledges that the CITY is required pursuant to the 
Grant Agreement to provide HUD an annual financial audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-128 
and the Single Audit Act of 1984.  To assist the CITY in preparing the required annual financial audits 
and all other reporting requirements of the CITY, St. Vincent de Paul shall provide through the last 
fiscal year in which grant funds are expended any and all information necessary to or requested by the 
CITY in preparation of any annual audit or other reporting requirement.  The CITY, PAC and HUD 
may monitor and make periodic inspections and evaluations of the project and all of St. Vincent de 
Paul’s books and records shall be available to the CITY and to HUD during regular working hours.  
These books and records shall be maintained for at least four (4) years following the project closeout.  
The CITY, Representatives of the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the inspector 
general, or the general accounting office shall have access to all books, accounts, reports, files, and 
other papers, things or property belonging to or in use pertaining to the administration of the grant 
funds pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
13. Recognition.  The CITY and St. Vincent de Paul agree that appropriate information shall be given 
to recipients of CDBG Entitlement Program grant funding which  shall give credit to HUD and the 
CITY for helping underwrite the program with CDBG funding. St. Vincent de Paul agrees to give 
appropriate credit to others that contribute time and materials to the program.  

 
14. Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  In the event any provision shall be 
determined to be void or unenforceable for any reason, such determination shall not affect the 
enforceability of the remaining provisions. 

 
15. Relationship of Contracting Parties.  This Agreement does not establish an employer- employee 
relationship between the parties.  St. Vincent de Paul shall indemnify the CITY and its representatives 
and shall hold it harmless against any and all suits, actions, claims, or losses of any kind, nature, and 
description, including costs, expenses, and attorney fees, that may be incurred by reason of any act or 
omission, neglect, or misconduct of St. Vincent de Paul that may arise out of or which are in any way 
related to this Agreement. 

 
St. Vincent de Paul shall at all times remain an independent contractor with all respects to the CITY 
and shall maintain (as needed or required by 24 CFR 84.31 or Idaho Code) for itself and its employees 
insurance, workers compensation coverage, unemployment insurance, and FICA and tax filings. 
 
16. Closeout.  St. Vincent de Paul’s obligation to the CITY under this Agreement shall not end until all 
payments have been made, disposition of assets made and approved, determination of custodianship of 
records, required reporting completed, and the project National Objective of assisting LMI persons has 
been met.  



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  4 of 7    E X H I B I T  “ B ”  

 
17. Copy Rights.  If this contract results in any copyrightable materials or inventions, The CITY 
reserves the right to royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or 
otherwise use and to authorize others to use the work or materials for governmental purposes. 

 
18.  Religious and Lobbying Activities.  St. Vincent de Paul certifies that no federal funds have been 
paid or will be paid to any person for the purpose of influencing any official, employee of any agency, 
or Members of Congress in the connection of awarding any federally funded contract or agreement. If 
other funds have been or will be so used, the St. Vincent de Paul certifies it has followed the proper 
procedures and submitted the Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying. 

 
St. Vincent de Paul certifies that no funds provide by this Agreement shall be used or used by personnel 
employed in the activities funded under this Agreement for political activities, lobbying, political 
patronage or nepotism.  

 
St. Vincent de Paul further agrees that funds provided under this Agreement will not be used for 
religious activities such as worship, religious instruction or proselytizing.  

 
19. Anti Discrimination.  St. Vincent de Paul  shall not discriminate in the provision of its services, 
hiring practices or procurement on any of the following bases: Race, Color, National Origin,  Family 
Status, Sex, Handicapping Condition, or Religion.  St. Vincent de Paul agrees to comply with Idaho 
Code and with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1968 as amended, Section 104 (b) and Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974 as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the American 
with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Age discrimination Act of 1975, Executive Order 11063, and 
Executive Order 11246 as amended by Executive Orders 11375, 11478, 12107 and 12086. 
 
Being in agreement and in witness thereof we set our signature to this contract. 
 
CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE 
KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
 
 
 

ST. VINCENT DE PAUL NORTH IDAHO 

By: __________________________________ 
      Steve Widmyer, Mayor  

By: __________________________________  
Its: __________________________________ 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 

 

 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  5 of 7    E X H I B I T  “ B ”  

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   ) ss. 
County of Kootenai ) 
 
 On this 7th day of June, 2016, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Steve Widmyer 
and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Coeur 
d'Alene and the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that said City 
of Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
                              ______________________________ 
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at Coeur d'Alene 
                              My Commission expires: 
 
 
 

******************************* 
 

 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
   ) ss. 
County of Kootenai ) 
 

On this ____ day of June, 2016, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Jeff Conroy, 
known to me to be the Executive Director, of St. Vincent de Paul of North Idaho, and the person who 
executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged to me that such 
corporation executed the same. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
                              ________________________________ 
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at Coeur d'Alene 
                              My Commission expires: 

 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  6 of 7    E X H I B I T  “ B ”  

Attachment A 
Grant Agreement between CITY of Coeur d’Alene and St. Vincent de Paul 

 
Summary of the project activities 

St. Vincent de Paul North Idaho will use these grant funds to purchase the H.E.L.P. Center located at 
201 E. Harrison Avenue from the City of Coeur d’Alene. 
 
Benefits: 
The program will benefit homeless families who have incomes within HUD’s LMI requirements, 
which is 80% or below Area Median Income (AMI). All program participants will meet HUD’s LMI 
eligibility standards, with the target population being at 50% or below AMI. The National Objective for 
this project is Benefit to low-to-moderate income persons.   
 
Schedule: 
The Project shall commence upon execution of the Contract between St. Vincent de Paul North Idaho 
and the City of Coeur d’Alene. 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  7 of 7    E X H I B I T  “ B ”  

 
Attachment B 

Project Budget 
Grant Agreement between CITY of Coeur d’Alene and St. Vincent de Paul 

 
Budget Item CDBG Funds Leverage Funds Total Project Costs 
Purchase H.E.L.P. Center $350,000  $350,000 
    
    
    
    
Total $350,000  $350,000 
 
 
St. Vincent de Paul will submit a detailed, itemized invoice or escrow agreement to PAC for review. 
The invoice shall be numbered and dated, it shall state the Project, name and address to which payment 
shall be made, and any additional information required by the grant funding agency. 
 
PAC will verify the information, process the request and submit the invoice to the CITY for payment.  
Progress payments shall be made within thirty (30) days after submittal and acceptance by the City. 
 
In the event project costs exceed these grant funds, St. Vincent de Paul shall be responsible for finding 
any and all additional funds.  The CITY shall not be responsible to provide additional funds to pay any 
costs in excess of $350,000.00 (three hundred fifty thousand dollars). 
 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  1 of 9    E X H I B I T  “ C ”  
 

AGREEMENT FOR CDBG GRANT FUNDS FOR 
BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF KOOTENAI COUNTY 

 
 
 This Agreement is entered into between the CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, a municipal 
corporation, whose mailing address is 710 E. Mullan Avenue, Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83814-3958, 
hereinafter referred to as the “CITY,” and the BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF KOOTENAI COUNTY 
– COEUR D’ALENE/HAGADONE CENTER, whose mailing address is 200 W. Mullan Avenue, Post 
Falls, Idaho, 83854, hereinafter referred to as “Subrecipient.” 
 
The key contact for Subrecipient is Ryan Davis, Executive Director.  
 
The key contact for the CITY is Sherri Wastweet, CDBG Grant Administrator, Panhandle Area Council 
(PAC). 
 
1. Activities Under This Agreement.   The CITY has received from the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) a grant from the Community Development Block Grant 
Program, identified as Grant No. B-14-MC-16-0007 (the “CDBG Grant”).  From this CDBG Grant, the 
CITY is awarding $37,000.00 (thirty-seven thousand dollars) to the Subrecipient for architecture and 
engineering activities during the development and construction of Boys and Girls Club of Kootenai 
County Coeur d’Alene/Hagadone Center project for area youth including those “at risk”.  The project is 
more fully described in Attachment A “Scope of Work,” attached hereto. 
 
All activities funded with CDBG funds must meet one of three CDBG National Objectives.  The 
Subrecipient certifies that the activity(ies) carried out under this Agreement will meet the National 
Objective of benefitting low-moderate-income through Limited Clientele, as defined in 24 CFR 
570.208.  Youth Centers, by definition, are an eligible activity under the CDBG program. 
 

2. Effective Date and Time of Performance.  This Agreement shall take effect on the date of 
execution of this Agreement.  The terms of this Agreement and the provisions herein shall be extended 
to cover any additional time period required to perform work for close out. 
 
3. Grant Amount and Matching Obligations.  It is expressly agreed and understood that the total 
amount to be paid by the CITY under this Agreement shall not exceed $37,000.00 (thirty-seven 
thousand dollars), referred to herein as the “grant funds.”  In the event costs exceed these grant funds, 
the Subrecipient shall be responsible for any and all additional costs.  The Subrecipient will provide the 
management resources, staff, and office supplies needed for the project. 
 
4. Budget.  The Budget, as set forth in Attachment B and attached hereto, shall be adhered to 
unless otherwise amended in writing, signed by both the Subrecipient and the CITY.  The Boys and 
Girls Club of Kootenai County will immediately repay to the CITY any amount of the grant funds that 
the CITY determines has been expended in a manner inconsistent with the CDBG Budget-Use of 
Funds. 
 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  2 of 9    E X H I B I T  “ C ”  
 

5. Program Income.  The Subrecipient shall report monthly all program income (as defined in 24 
CFR 570.500(a)) generated by activities carried out with CDBG funds made available under this 
Agreement. The use of program income by the Subrecipient shall comply with the requirements set 
forth at 24 CFR 570.504.  Program income is considered the same as grant funds and is thereby subject 
to this Agreement and all the federal regulations.  The Subrecipient is allowed to retain and use 
program income for the same purposes as covered by this Agreement.  Program income shall be 
expended before any additional grant funds are requested unless authorized differently in the Scope of 
Work.  
 
6. Payments.  The CITY will pay to the Subrecipient funds available under this Agreement based 
upon information submitted by the Subrecipient and consistent with any approved budget and CITY 
policy concerning payments.  Payments will be made for eligible expenses actually incurred by the 
Subrecipient, and in no case will it exceed actual cash requirements.   
 
The Subrecipient shall submit a single request for reimbursement of actual eligible expenses which 
shall be numbered and dated.  The report shall at a minimum include the project name, name of 
Subrecipient and address to which payment is to be made, and detailed itemized costs by budget 
category.  All reporting shall be supported by appropriate documentation such as receipts, billings, 
invoices, timesheets, or other similar documents.  Proof of payment must be provided.  A Progress 
report must be submitted with the pay request. 
 
The pay request(s) should be submitted to the CITY’s Grant Administrator at Panhandle Area Council 
(PAC), 11100 N. Airport Drive, Hayden, Idaho  83835-9798. 
 
7. Insurance.  The Subrecipient warrants that it has obtained, and will maintain at its expense for 
the duration of this Agreement, statutory worker's compensation coverage, employer's liability, and 
comprehensive general liability insurance coverage for its principals and employees.  The 
comprehensive general liability insurance shall have, at a minimum, a coverage limit of five hundred 
thousand dollars ($500,000). 
 
8. Grant Program Requirements.  This Agreement and the project is governed by the provisions of 
Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 as amended, Public Law 93-383,  and 
the implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 570.  The Subrecipient shall not take any action or do 
anything inconsistent with the purposes and intent of the CDBG program. The Subrecipient shall 
comply with all state and local and federal laws and regulations that pertain to the program and the 
CDBG grant program and funds. 
 
9. Environmental.  The Subrecipient shall comply with the conditions of the Environmental 
Review performed for this project.  The Subrecipient has copies of the Environment Review Record.  
 
10. Real Property Acquisition, Relocation, and Disposal.  The Subrecipient agrees to comply with:  
(a) the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended 
(URA), and implementing regulations at 49 CFR Part 24 and 24 CFR 570.606(b); (b) the requirements 
of 24 CFR 570.606(c) governing the Residential Anti-displacement and Relocations Assistance Plan 
under section 104(d) of the HCD Act; and (c) the requirements in 24 CFR 570.606(d) governing 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  3 of 9    E X H I B I T  “ C ”  
 

optional relocation policies.  The Subrecipient shall provide relocation assistance to displaced persons 
as defined by 24 CFR 570.606(b)(2) who are displaced as a direct result of acquisition, rehabilitation, 
demolition, or conversion for a CDBG-assisted project.  The Subrecipient also agrees to comply with 
applicable CITY ordinances, resolutions, and policies concerning the displacement of persons from 
their residence. 
 
11. Procurement Standards and Methods.  The Subrecipient shall use procurement and purchasing 
standards that are in compliance with state law.  Generally, procurement of items or services costing 
less than $25,000 may use the informal Small Purchase process.  Small Purchase process requires three 
written bids/quotes.  Larger purchases should follow formal bidding processes including proper 
bonding and guarantees.  See Idaho Code §67-2801 et seq.  Panhandle Area Council can provide 
technical assistance for procurement. 

 
12. Termination of Grant Agreement.  The CITY may at any time terminate this Agreement for 
cause or convenience.  If terminated for the convenience of the CITY, the CITY shall pay for any work 
completed up to the date of the termination.  If the CITY terminates this Agreement for cause, the 
CITY will not make any payments for work completed in violation of this Agreement.  If for any reason 
the Agreement is terminated, the Subrecipient agrees and acknowledges that the CITY shall bear no 
liability or responsibility of any kind or for any reason to the Subrecipient for any of the funds received, 
to be received, or anticipated to be received pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
13. Financial and Progress Reports.  On a monthly basis the Subrecipient shall submit financial 
reports that details costs incurred by line item as described in the project budget, Attachment B.  The 
Subrecipient agrees to submit monthly performance reports in the form, content, and frequency as 
required by the CITY, and to provide any and all information which the CITY may need or request in 
preparing the CITY’s interim performance reports to HUD.  A detailed written final report with 
documentation of the activities carried out, expenditures, and benefits generated shall be submitted to 
PAC at the conclusion of the project. 

 
The Subrecipient shall report all program income generated by activities carried out with CDBG funds 
made available under this Agreement.  The Subrecipient may use such income during the contract 
period for activities permitted under this Agreement and shall reduce requests for additional funds by 
the amount of any such program income balances on hand, as provided by 24 CFR 570.504. 
 
All required reports shall be submitted to the CITY’s Grant Administrator at Panhandle Area Council 
(PAC), 11100 N. Airport Drive, Hayden, Idaho  83835-9798. 
 
14. Record Keeping.  If applicable, the Subrecipient agrees to comply with 24 CFR 84.21-28 and 
agrees to adhere to the accounting principles and procedures required therein, utilize adequate internal 
controls, and maintain necessary source documentation for all costs incurred.  The Subrecipient shall 
administer its program in conformance with OMB Circulars A-122, “Cost Principles for Non-Profit 
Organizations,” or A-21, “Cost Principles for Educational Institutions,” as applicable.  These principles 
shall be applied for all costs incurred. 
 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  4 of 9    E X H I B I T  “ C ”  
 

Subrecipient shall keep records sufficient to document purchases that are in accordance with 
procurement policies and track assets.  Any real property acquisition activities shall be documented as 
required by the Acquisition and Relocation requirements of the grant program.  Records of compliance 
with any environmental requirements shall be maintained.  Other records required to document 
activities undertaken, demonstrating eligibility and a national objective has been met, shall also be 
maintained. 
 
15. Client Data and Disclosure.  The Subrecipient shall maintain client data demonstrating client 
eligibility for services which shall include, but not be limited to, client name, address, and income level 
or other basis for determining eligibility. 
 
Client information collected under this Agreement is private and the use or disclosure of such 
information is prohibited when not directly related to the CITY’s or Subrecipient’s responsibilities with 
respect to services under this Agreement unless written consent is first obtained from the client. 
 
16. Amendments to this Grant Agreement.  The Subrecipient understands and agrees that no change 
shall be made to the nature or purpose of the project and this Agreement, and that no changes shall be 
made in the budget (Attachment B), the Scope of Work (Attachment A), or the design of the project 
without the prior written consent of the CITY.  Either party may initiate an amendment.  From time to 
time the CITY may at it discretion amend this Agreement to reflect changes in the program 
requirements, regulations, or law.  
 
17.  Subcontracts.  The Subrecipient shall not enter into any subcontracts with any agency or 
individual in the performance of this Agreement without written consent of the CITY prior to the 
execution of such agreement.  These subcontracts shall contain all the requirements of this Agreement.  
In addition, prior to execution of any amendments to subcontracts, written consent by the CITY is 
required.  All contracts and subcontracts must comply with all applicable state and federal laws and 
regulations.  
 
18. Audit and Monitoring.  All Subrecipient records with respect to any matters covered by this 
Agreement shall be made available to the CITY, grantor agency, and the Comptroller General of the 
United States, or any of their authorized representatives, at any time during normal business hours, to 
audit, examine, and make excerpts or transcripts of all relevant data. 
 
If applicable, the Subrecipient shall provide the CITY with an annual agency audit in accordance with 
OMB Circular A-133 and the Single Audit Act of 1984.  The audit shall be completed by a certified 
public accountant during the regular annual audit cycle.  The Subrecipient shall provide annual audits 
through the last fiscal year grant funds are expended. 
 
19. Retention.  The Subrecipient shall retain all financial records, supporting documents, statistical 
records, and all other records pertinent to the Agreement for a period of four (4) years.  The retention 
period begins on the date of the submission of the CITY’s annual performance and evaluation report to 
HUD in which the activities assisted under the Agreement are reported on for the final time.  If there is 
litigation, claims, audits, negotiations, or other actions that involve any of the records cited, and that 
have started before the expiration of the four-year retention period, then such records must be retained 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  5 of 9    E X H I B I T  “ C ”  
 

until completion of the actions and resolution of all issues, or the expiration of the four-year period, 
whichever occurs later. 
 
20. Recognition.  The CITY and the Subrecipient agree that appropriate information shall be given 
to recipients of the CDBG Entitlement Program that shall give credit to HUD and the CITY for helping 
underwrite the program with CDBG funding.  The Subrecipient shall include a reference to the support 
provided herein in all publications made possible with CDBG funds under this Agreement. 
 
21. Severability.  The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  In the event any provision is 
determined to be void or unenforceable for any reason, such determination shall not affect the 
enforceability of the remaining provisions.   
 
22. Hold Harmless.  The Subrecipient shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the CITY and its 
representatives from any and all claims, actions, suits, charges, and judgments or losses of any kind, 
nature, and description, including costs, expenses, and attorney fees, that may be incurred by reason of 
any act or omission, neglect, or misconduct of the Subrecipient that may arise out of or which are in any 
way related to this Agreement. 
 
23. Independent Contractor.  The contracting parties warrant by their signatures that no employer-
employee relationship is established between the Subrecipient and the CITY by the terms of this 
Agreement.  It is understood by the parties hereto that the Subrecipient is an independent contractor and 
shall at all times remain an independent contractor with all respects to the CITY and shall maintain (as 
needed or required by 24 CFR 84.31) for itself and its employees: insurance, workman’s Comp, 
unemployment insurance, and FICA and tax filings. 
 
24. Closeout.  The Subrecipient’s obligation to the CITY shall not end until all close-out 
requirements are completed.  Close-out activities shall include, but are not limited to, making final 
payments, disposing of program assets, and determining the custodianship of records, that required 
reporting is completed, and that the project National Objective has been met.  
 
25. Labor Standards.  The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the Davis-Bacon Act as amended, 
the provisions of Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327 et seq.), and all other 
applicable Federal , state and local laws and regulations pertaining to labor standards insofar as those 
acts apply to the performance of this Agreement. 
 
26. Copyrights.  If this Agreement results in any copyrightable materials or inventions, the CITY 
reserves the right to a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or 
otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, the work or materials for governmental purposes. 
 
27. Religious and Lobbying Activities.  The Subrecipient certifies that no federal funds have been 
paid or will be paid to any person for the purpose of influencing any official, employee of any agency, 
or Member of Congress in the connection with the awarding of any federal contract or agreement.  If 
other funds have been or will be so used, the Subrecipient certifies it has followed the proper 
procedures and submitted the Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying.  The Subrecipient certifies that no 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  6 of 9    E X H I B I T  “ C ”  
 

funds provided by this Agreement shall be used for political activities, lobbying, political patronage, or 
nepotism.  
 
The Subrecipient further agrees that funds provided under this Agreement will not be used for religious 
activities prohibited by 24 CFR 570.200(j), such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytizing.  
 
28. Section 3.  The Subrecipient shall comply with the provisions of Section 3 of the HUD Act of 
1968, as amended, and strive to select services or contractors that reside or have their business locations 
in the City of Coeur d’Alene.  This will meet the Section 3 requirements that to the greatest extent 
feasible opportunities for training and employment be given to low and very low income residents of 
the project area and that contracts for work in connection with this project be awarded to business 
concerns that provide economic opportunities for low and very low income persons residing in the area 
in which the project is located.  
 
29. Anti-Discrimination.  The Subrecipient shall not discriminate in the provision of its services, 
hiring practices, or procurement on any of the following bases: Race, Color, National Origin,  Family 
Status, Sex, Handicap Condition, or Religion.  The Subrecipient agrees to comply with Idaho Code and 
with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 as 
amended, Section 104 (b) and Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act 
of 1974 as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the American with Disabilities 
Act of 1990, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Executive Order 11063, and Executive Order 11246 
as amended by Executive Orders 11375, 11478, 12107, and 12086. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Coeur d’Alene have executed 
this Agreement on behalf of the CITY, the City clerk has affixed the seal of the CITY hereto, and the 
Subrecipient has caused the same to be signed and its seal to be affixed hereto, and the undersigned 
have caused this Agreement to be executed this 7th day of June, 2016. 
 
CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE 
KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
 
 
 

BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF KOOTENAI 
COUNTY 

By: __________________________________ 
      Steve Widmyer, Mayor  

By: __________________________________  
Ryan Davis, Executive Director  

 
Date: __________________________________  

 
Date: __________________________________   

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 

 

 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  7 of 9    E X H I B I T  “ C ”  
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
 
 

STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF KOOTENAI ) 
 
 On this 7th day of June, 2016, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared STEVE 
WIDMYER and RENATA MCLEOD, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk,  respectively, 
of the City of Coeur d’Alene that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that said 
City of Coeur d’Alene executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
     
            
      Notary Public in and for the State of Idaho 
      Residing at:      
      My Commission Expires:    
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF KOOTENAI ) 
 
 On this ___ day of June, 2016, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared RYAN 
DAVIS, known to me to be the Executive Director for the BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB OF 
KOOTENAI COUNTY and the person who executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said 
corporation, and acknowledged to me that such corporation executed the same.  
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written.  
 
 
            
      Notary Public in and for the State of Idaho 
      Residing at:     
      My Commission Expires:   



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  8 of 9    E X H I B I T  “ C ”  
 

Attachment A 
Grant Agreement between CITY of Coeur d’Alene and the 

Boys and Girls Club of Kootenai County 
 
Scope of services 
 
Under the 2014 Community Development Block Grant, the Boys and Girls Club of Kootenai County 
will utilize $37,000 for architecture and engineering activities related to the construction of the Boys 
and Girls Club – Coeur d’Alene/Hagadone Center.  The Center will be 20,000 square feet and will 
serve an estimated 500 plus kids per day.  The new site is located next to Lakes Middle School on the 
east side of Coeur d’Alene.  This location was chosen because it will serve the highest percentage of 
need for youth programs, based on the area schools free & reduced lunch levels. 
 
 
National Objective:  As a result of the CDBG funding, the project will provide documentation 
regarding the LMI Limited Clientele accomplished will complete the project. 
 
 
At the completion of the project, a final report is due on the number of beneficiaries served and the 
demographics of those served, specifically the ethnicity, female head of household, and the LMI 
status identified as extremely low, low, or moderate income household.  Monthly reports on 
progress and expenditures shall be submitted to PAC. 
 
 
Project Schedule 
 
The new Coeur d’Alene/Hagadone Center is expected to be completed by October 2016. 



Resolution No. 16-028      Page  9 of 9    E X H I B I T  “ C ”  
 

 
Attachment B 

Project Budget 
Grant Agreement between CITY of Coeur d’Alene and the  

Boys and Girls Club of Kootenai County 
 
Budget Item CDBG Funds Other Funding Total Project Costs 
Personnel    
    
Number of Employees & Job 
Title 

   

Salaries Total    
Fringe Benefits    

Personnel Total    
    
Project Costs    
Acquisition:    
Appraisal Costs:    
Design: $20,000 $7,500 $27,500 
Architectural/Engineering: $100,000 $40,000 $140,000 
Construction:  $2,332,500 $2,332,500 
Permits & Fees:    
Insurance:    
Legal Fees:    
Financing:    
Other: Indirect    

Total Operating Costs:    
    
Total $120,000 $2,380,000 $2,500,000 
 
 
 



   

GENERAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
DATE:   May 19, 2016  
 
FROM: RENATA MCLEOD, MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTOR 
 
RE: PROPERTY MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH SYRINGA PROPERTY 

MANAGEMENT, INC. FOR UNITS LOCATED AT 106 HOMESTEAD AVENUE 
AND TERMINATION OF A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH ST. VINCENT DE PAUL 
OF NORTH IDAHO PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED BY RESOLUTION NO.11-017 

 
 
DECISION POINT:  To ratify a property management agreement with Syringa Property 
Management, Inc. for units located at 106 Homestead Avenue and termination of a Lease Agreement 
with St. Vincent de Paul of North Idaho previously authorized by Resolution No. 11-017. 
 
HISTORY:    At the February 15, 2011 City Council meeting the City Council authorized staff to 
complete a land acquisition of existing Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) units located 106 
Homestead Avenue based on the goal outlined in the 2006 Housing Needs Assessment to support 
affordable housing.  In collaboration with St. Vincent de Paul it was thought that management of the 7-
unit adjacent to their HUD 811 development would be reasonable.  At this time St. Vincent de Paul has 
requested termination of the Lease and provided a thirty day notice to end the management of the 
property, as it did not work within their resources to manage the LIHTC property.  Since this property 
is a LIHTC, Idaho Housing and Finance Association serves as the regulatory agency and provided a 
list of authorized property managers that the City can contract with, which have experience with 
LIHTC.  Since this was a tight timeline to bring on an additional property manager and seek quotes 
from three entities, the City had to enter into an agreement with Syringa Property Management prior to 
the June 7, 2016 Council meeting.  Syringa provided a great proposal and will be able to provide the 
City with approximately $15,000 a year in revenue, while continuing to meet the affordable housing 
goal and LIHTC regulations.  Additionally, this provided an opportunity to include preference points 
for victims of domestic violence that are referred by Safe Passage.     
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:  Syringa Property Management, Inc. will be paid $500.00 per month for 
property management services.  They will establish a reserve account and provide annual revenue back 
to the City estimated to be $15,000 per year.    
 
RECOMMENDATION:  To ratify a property management agreement with Syringa Property 
Management, Inc. for units located at 106 Homestead Avenue and termination of a Lease Agreement 
with St. Vincent de Paul of North Idaho previously authorized by Resolution No. 11-017. 
 







































































































LIHTC Mgmt Agreement 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made this 17111 day of May, 2016, between the City of Coeur d' Alene (the "Owner") 
and Syringa Property Management, Inc. (the "Agent"). In consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter 
set forth, the Owner and the Agent agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

Section 1.01 Appointment and Acceptance. The Owner hereby appoints the Agent as exclusive 
agent for the management of the property described in Section 1.02 of this Agreement, and the Agent hereby 
accepts the appointment, on the basis of the terms and conditions set forth herein. Notwithstanding the 
authority given the Agent in this Agreement, the Agent agrees to confer fully and freely with the Owner in 
connection with the performance of the Agent's duties hereunder. 

Section 1.02 Description of Property. The property to be managed under this Agreement is a 
housing development (the "Development"), consisting of real property with one or more buildings, and 
improvements, appurtenances, and equipment. The Development is more fully described as follows: 

Development Name: 
Development Address: 
County: 
Number of Dwelling Units: 

Homestead Apartments 
106 Homestead Avenue, Coeur D'Alene, Idaho 83815 
Kootenai 

1 

Section 1.03 Regulatory Provisions: The Owner and the Agent hereby recognize that the Owner is 
required to comply with specific rules and regulations of IRS Section 42, Low Income Housing Tax Credit 
("Section 42") and the HOME program. The Agent further fully understands that the operation and marketing 
of the Development is subject to an Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan and that a portion or all of the 
dwelling units in the Development will be subject to Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) requirements, 
including gross income limits and rent restrictions. In the performance of its duties hereunder, the Agent 
agrees to comply with the provisions of LIHTC, and the policies, procedures, rules and regulations of the 
agency responsible for oversight of LIHTC, all as amended from time to time. The Owner shall not amend, 
modifY, or terminate this management agreement without the express, written consent ofldaho Housing and 
Finance Association. 

ARTICLE II 
GENERAL FUNCTIONS OF AGENT 

Section 2.01 Inspection Prior to Occupancy: Prior to occupancy of any unit by a family, the Owner 
or Agent and the family shall inspect the unit and both shall certifY that they have inspected the unit and have 
determined it to be decent, safe, and sanitary in accordance with the criteria provided in the prescribed forms. 
Copies of these reports shall be kept by the Owner or Agent for at least three years. 

Section 2.02 Social Services Program: The Agent shall be responsible for carrying out social 
services programs, pursuant to the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Regulatory Agreement (attached as 

Page 1 
Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "D"



LIHTC Mgmt Agreement 

Exhibit A) and the specific direction of the Owner, and subject to the provision of adequate funds. The Agent 
shall use its best efforts to maintain amicable relations with the residents of the Development and shall assist 
them, if requested, in forming and maintaining representative organizations. 

Section 2.03 On-Site Management: The Agent shall maintain a management office in the 
Development and, to the extent provided in the operating budget, staff the Development with an on-site 
manager. Compensation of the on-site manager, including fringe benefits and employer overhead costs, shall 
be an operating cost of the Development. 

Section 2.04 Confer with Owner: The Agent agrees to keep itself informed with respect to the 
policies and regulations of the program and to confer fully and freely with the Owner in the performance of its 
duties. 

Section 2.05 Meeting with Owner: The Agent agrees to cause an officer of the Agent to attend 
meetings with the Owner at a time requested by the Owner. 

Section 2.06 Insurance: The Owner will inform the Agent of insurance to be carried with respect to 
the Development and its operations, and the Agent will cause such insurance to be placed and kept in force at 
all times with such companies, on such conditions, in such amounts, and with such beneficial interest 
appearing thereon as shall be acceptable to the Owner. Insurance premiums for the Development will be paid 
by the Owner. 

The Agent shall investigate all accidents, claims, and potential claims for damages relating to the 
Development and shall cooperate with the Owner and insurers in connection with any claims. 

Section 2.07 Fair Housing: The Agent shall comply with the provisions of all Federal, State, and 
local laws prohibiting discrimination in housing on the grounds of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, 
familial status, and handicap including, without limitations, Executive Order 1 1063, Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, regulations and orders issued pursuant thereto, 
and any amendments and superseding legislation, regulations, or orders. Additionally, the Agent agrees to 
comply with City of Coeur d'Alene Municipal Code Chapter 9.56 entitled "Discrimination in Housing, 
Employment, and Public Accommodation Prohibited" (attached as Exhibit B.) This Agreement may be 
terminated or suspended in whole or in part by the Owner a finding by the Owner that the Agent has not 
complied with nondiscrimination provisions. 

Section 2.08 Marketing: The Agent shall market the rental units according to the Affirmative Fair 
Housing Marketing Plan, if required, and will maintain records of the marketing activity for compliance 
review. 

ARTICLE III 
RENTALS 

Section 3.01 Rentals: The Agent shall use its best efforts to rent the dwelling units, commercial areas, 
and other facilities and concessions in the Development. 

Section 3.02 Applications: The Agent shall take and process applications for rentals. If an applicant 
is rejected, the Agent shall inform the applicant in writing the reason for the rejection. The source of the 
information upon which the rejection has been based shall be revealed to the applicant. The applicant shall be 
informed of his right to appeal the decision. The Agent shall maintain a current list of prospective tenants and 
shall, at all times, make selections according to the current resident selection policy. 

·· Page 2 
Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "D"



LIHTC Mgmt Agreement 

Section 3.03 Resident Selection Policy: 

A. The Agent shall show the premises to prospective residents and shall follow the resident 
selection policy. 

B. Admission to the Development shall be limited to persons whose incomes do not exceed the 
limits prescribed by HUD according to the development plan. 

Section 3.04 Lease Forms: 

A. The Agent shall prepare all leases for dwelling units, leases for commercial facilities, permits 
for parking spaces, and licenses or other agreements with concessionaires and shall execute such 
documents in its name, identified as Agent of the Owner. 

B. The Agent shall prepare all leases for dwelling units on forms approved by the Owner. 

C. The Agent shall not allow subleasing. 

D. Full compliance by the residents with the terms and conditions of their respective leases shall 
be secured. The Agent shall see that all residents are informed with respect to such rules, regulations, 
and notices as may be promulgated by the Owner. 

Section 3.05: Rent Schedules: The Agent shall advise all prospective residents regarding eligibility, 
pursuant to selection criteria, for rents less than market rents. The Agent shall prepare and verifY eligibility 
certifications and recertifications of income and allowances in accordance with the LIHTC program 
requirements. 

ARTICLE IV 
COLLECTION AND DEPOSITS OF RENTS 

Section 4.01 Operating Account: The Agent shall collect when due all rents, fees, and other charges 
receivable in connection with the management and operation of the Development. Such receipts shall be 
deposited in an account, separate from all other accounts and funds of the Agent, with a bank whose deposits 
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The account shall be designated 
"Homestead Apartments" operating Account. 

Section 4.02 Security Deposit Account: 

A. The Agent shall collect, deposit, and disburse resident's security deposits in accordance with 
the terms of the respective leases and in accordance with State Law. 

B. Residents' security deposits shall be deposited in an account, separate from all other accounts 
and funds of the Agent, with a bank or other financial institution whose deposits are insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Interest earned on the security deposits, if any, will accrue to 
the benefit of the Development. 

C. The Agent shall cause the amount of the Security Deposit Account to equal or exceed at all 
times the aggregate of all outstanding obligations by the Owner with respect to security deposits. 

······ ···································· Page 3 
Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "D"



LIHTC Mgmt Agreement 

Section 4.03 Enforcement of Leases: 

A. The Agent shall secure full compliance by each resident with the terms of the lease. 

B. Voluntary compliance shall be emphasized, and the Agent shall make referrals to community 
agencies in cases of financial hardship or under other circumstances deemed appropriate by the Agent, 
so that involuntary termination of tenancies may be avoided to the maximum extent consistent with 
sound management of the Development. The Agent will not, however, tolerate willful evasion of 
payment of rent. 

C. Subject to the approved procedures, the Agent may lawfully terminate any tenancy when, in 
the Agent's judgment, it can demonstrate and show good cause under the terms of the resident's lease. 

D. The Agent is authorized to consult with legal counsel designated by the Owner to bring 
actions for eviction, and to execute notices to vacate and commence appropriate judicial proceedings; 
provided, however, that the Agent shall keep the Owner informed of such actions and shall follow 
such instructions as the Owner may provide. 

E. Costs incurred by the Owner in connection with such actions shall be paid out of the 
Operating Account as Development expenses. 

ARTICLE V 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS 

Section 5.01 Agent's Responsibilities: The Agent shall cause the Development to be maintained in 
accordance with local codes and in a condition at all times acceptable to the Owner, including, but not limited 
to, cleaning, painting, decorating, plumbing, heating, roofing, carpentry, grounds care, and such other 
maintenance and repair work as may be necessary. Special attention shall be given to preventive maintenance. 

Section 5.02 Resident's Service Requests: The Agent shall systematically and promptly receive and 
investigate all service requests, and take such action thereon as may be justified. The Agent shall keep records 
of the service requests and the maintenance performed at the Development. Emergency requests shall be 
responded to as promptly as possible but in all cases, within twenty-four (24) hours. Complaints of a serious 
nature will be reported to the Owner. 

Section 5.03 Agent's Authority: 

A. Subject to the provisions of Paragraph "B" below, the Agent is authorized to purchase all 
materials, equipment, tools, appliances, supplies, and services necessary for proper maintenance and 
repair of the buildings, equipment and grounds. 

B. The prior approval of the Owner is required for any expenditure which exceeds $ 1,000 in any 
one instance or to incur liabilities for or to the Owner, direct or contingent, in excess of$5,000, except 
for recurring expenses within the limits of the Operating Budget, emergency repairs involving 
manifest danger to persons or property, or repairs required to avoid suspension of any necessary 
service to the Development. In the latter events, the Agent shall inform the Owner of the facts as soon 
as possible. 

Page4 
Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "D"



LIHTC Mgmt Agreement 

C. The Agent shall use all available techniques to ensure the most economical purchase of goods 
and services on behalf of the Development, including bulk purchasing. All goods and services 
purchased by the Agent for the Development shall be limited solely for use at the Development. The 
Agent shall obtain contracts, materials, supplies, utilities, and service on the most advantageous terms 
and shall credit to the Owner all discounts, rebates, or commissions obtainable with respect to 
purchases, service contracts, and all other transactions on the Owner's behalf. 

Section 5.04 Compliance with Government Orders: The Agent shall take such action as needed to 
comply with all statutes, ordinances, regulations, orders, or other requirements affecting the Development; 
provided that the Agent will take no action so long as the Owner is contesting or has affirmed its intention to 
contest the same. The Agent shall notifY the Owner of any and all notices of such requirements. 

Section 5.05 Utilities: In accordance with the operating budget, the Agent shall make arrangements 
for water, electricity, gas, fuel, oil, sewage and trash disposal, vermin extermination, decorating, laundry 
facilities, telephone, and other utilities and services. Subject to the Owner's prior approval, the Agent shall 
make such contracts as may be necessary to secure appropriate utilities and services. 

ARTICLE VI 
EMPLOYEES 

Section 6.01 Employees of the Agent: All employees shall be employees of the Agent, and shall be 
hired, supervised, and discharged by the Agent. 

Section 6.02 Subcontractors: To the greatest extent feasible, the services of regular maintenance and 
repair employees shall be used in the Development. However, subject to the terms set forth in Article V, the 
Agent shall contract with qualified independent contractors for services and repairs beyond the capability of 
regular maintenance employees. 

ARTICLE VII 
DISBURSEMENTS FROM OPERATING ACCOUNT 

Section 7.01 Payments Due Owner: The Agent shall make an annual payment of profits to the 
Owner . .  

Section 7.02 Reserve Accounts: The Agent shall make when due, to the extent there are sufficient 
funds, from the Operating Account the amount specified for allocation to the Reserve for Replacements and 
other reserve payments as required. 

Section 7.03 Agent's Compensation: The Agent shall be compensated for its services described 
under this agreement by monthly fees to be paid out of the Operating Account as an operating expense of the 
Development. Such fees shall be computed and paid monthly based upon the preceding month's paid rent for 
apartments and commercial space. The management fee is $500 a month. 

Section 7.04 Other Project Expense: The Agent shall pay from the Operating Account all other 
operating expenses of the Development to the extent provided in the Operating Budget. 

Section 7.05 Owner's Direction: Except for items described in Sections 7.01 through Sections 7.04 
hereof, funds shall be disbursed or transferred from the Operating Account only as the Owner may direct. 

·· Page 5 
Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "D"



LIHTC Mgmt Agreement 

Section 7.06 Deficiency in Operating Account: In the event that the balance in the Operating 
Account is at any time insufficient to pay disbursements due and payable under Sections 7.01 through 7.04 
hereof, the Agent shall give the Owner at least fifteen (15) days written notice and the Owner will thereupon 
remit to the Agent sufficient funds to offset the deficiency. 

ARTICLE VIII 
RECORDS AND REPORTS 

Section 8.01 Books of Account: The Agent shall establish, maintain, and safeguard a comprehensive 
system of records, books, and accounts in a manner satisfactory to the Owner. Any and all books, records, and 
accounts shall be subject to examination at reasonable hours by any authorized representative of the Owner. 

Section 8.02 Internal Control: The Agent shall maintain adequate controls to ensure against losses 
or improper recording of transactions. 

Section 8.03 Reports: The Agent shall prepare and deliver to the Owner information monthly with 
respect to the overall financial, physical, or operational condition of the Development. In addition, the Agent 
shall prepare and deliver the following reports, when required, in a timely fashion: 

• Monthly Financial Report 
• Annual Certificate of Compliance 

Section 8.04 Annual Reports: The Agent shall deliver to the Owner within sixty (60) days after the 
end of the Development's fiscal year an annual financial statement audited by a certified public accountant or 
other person acceptable to the Owner. Auditors shall be selected by the Owner. Such statement shall include a 
balance sheet, statement of profit and loss, a statement of changes in financial position, and other reports as 

required. The Agent shall assist in the preparation of all income and other tax returns, and shall ensure that all 
such returns are filed in a timely manner. 

ARTICLE IX 
TERM OF AGREEMENT 

Section 9.01 Term of Agreement: This agreement shall be in effect for a period of two years, 
beginning on the 19th day of May 2016, and ending on the 31st day of May 2018. This agreement shall 
continue in force after the expiration of the initial term, upon the same conditions, for a successive term or 
terms unless either party gives notice of cancellation to the other not less than Sixty (60) days prior to the date 
of expiration of such successive term. 

Section 9.02 Termination by Mutual Consent: This agreement may be terminated by the mutual 
consent of the Parties as of the end of any calendar month, provided that not less than thirty (30) days written 
notice is given by either Party. 

Section 9.03 Termination by Owner for Cause: In the event that the Agent shall fail to perform any 
of its duties hereunder or comply with any of the provisions hereof, the Owner may terminate this Agreement 
for cause upon Owner's thirty (30) day written notice to the Agent. 

Section 9.04 Accounting Upon Termination: Within ten (1 0) days after the termination of this 

Page 6 
Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "D"



LIHTC Mgmt Agreement 

agreement, the Owner and the Agent shall account to each other with respect to all matters outstanding as of 
the date of termination, and the Agent shall tum over to the Owner all records, documents or other instruments, 
waiting lists, and any and all other files and papers in its possession pertaining to the Agent's performance 
under this Agreement. Upon receipt of all documents and with a reasonable amount of time for review, the 
Owner shall furnish the Agent security against any outstanding obligations or liabilities, which the Agent may 
have incurred hereunder. 

Section 9.05 Termination by Idaho Housing and Finance Association: This management 
agreement shall be subject to termination in the sole discretion of Idaho Housing and Finance Association 
without penalty and with or without cause, upon written request by Idaho Housing and Finance Association 
addressed to the Owner. Upon receipt of such request, the Owner shall terminate the Management Agreement 
in the manner provided by any applicable terms and conditions and make arrangements satisfactory to Idaho 
Housing and Finance Association for continuing management of the Development. 

ARTICLE X 
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

Section 10.1 Amendment: This agreement may be modified or amended only with the written 
approval of all Parties. 

Section 10.2 Assignment: This agreement and the rights and obligations herein set forth shall not be 
assigned by either Party without prior written consent of the Parties. 

Section 10.3 Separability: Any provision of any applicable law, which supersedes any provision 
hereof, shall not affect the validity of the balance of this agreement, and the remaining provisions shall be 
enforced as if the invalid provisions were deleted. 

Section 10.4 Counterparts: This agreement may be executed in counterparts and shall constitute one 
agreement binding on all the Parties notwithstanding that all the Parties are not signatories to the original or the 
same counterpart. Each Party shall become bound by this agreement immediately upon affixing its signature 
hereto, independently of the signature of any other Party. 

Section 10.5 Indemnification: The Owner agrees to indemnifY, defend, and save the Agent harmless 
from all suits and liability for damage to property and injuries or death of any person whomsoever, arising out 
of the sole negligence of the Owner. The Owner further agrees to carry at the Owner's expense public liability 
insurance in an amount of at least $ 1,000,000. The Agent agrees to indemnifY, defend, and save the Owner 
harmless from all suits and liability for damage to property and injuries or death of any person whomsoever, 
arising out of the sole negligence of the Agent. The Agent agrees to carry, at its own expense, liability 
insurance in an amount of at least $ 1,000,000, naming the Owner as an additional named insured. Proof of 
such insurance shall be provided to the Owner at or before the signing of this agreement. 

Section 10.6 This agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Agent and the 
heirs, administrators, executors, successors, and assigns of the Owner. 

IN WI1NESS WHEREOF, the Parties (by their duly authorized officers) have executed this agreement on the 
1 7th day of May, 2016. 

·· Page 7 
Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "D"



LIHTC Mgmt Agreement 

Signatures to Follow 

ACCEPTED BY: 

AGENT: 

ADDRESS: 

B� 
TITLE: Dianne Hunt, President 

DATE: May 17,2016 

WITNESS: �(!_ f!u);v 

PageS 

Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit "D"



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



EXHIBIT "A"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



ORDINANCE NO. 3466 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 13-101 1 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A NEW CHAPTER TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, TO PROHIBIT 
DISCRIMINATION IN HOUSING, EMPLOYMENT AND PUBLIC ACCOMMODATIONS 
BASED UPON SEXUAL ORIENTATION AND GENDER IDENTITYEXPRESSION AND 
PROVIDING THAT A VIOLATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IS A MISDEMEANOR 
PUNISHABLE BY A FINE OF UP TO $1,000.00 OR BY IMPRISONMENT NOT TO EXCEED 
180 DAYS OR BOTH; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; 
PROVIDING THAT THE PROVISIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE ARE SEVERABLE; 
PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF THIS ORDINANCE AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF. 

WHEREAS, it is the policy md intent of the City of Coeur d’ Alene that no person be denied 
equal protection of the laws; nor shall any person be discriminated against because of his or her 
sexual orientation or gender identity/expression; and 

WHEREAS, state and federal laws prohibit discrimination in the areas of employment, public 
accommodation, and housing on the basis of race, color, age, sex, national origin, and/or disability, 
but there are no such protections against discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation or gender 
identity/expression; and 

WHEREAS, nothing contained herein should be construed as supporting or advocating any 
particular doctrine, position, point of view, or religious view. To the contrary, it is the intention of 
this ordinance that all persons are treated fairly and equally in the City of Coeur d’Alene; and 

WHEREAS, after recommendation by the General Services Committee, it is deemed by the 
Mayor and City Council to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d’Alene that said amendments 
be adopted; NOW, THEREFORE, 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene: 

SECTION 1. That a new Chapter 9.56, entitled DISCRIMINATION IN HOUSING, 
EMPLOYMENT AND PUBLIC ACCOMODATIONS PROHIBITED is added to the Coeur 
d’Alene Municipal Code as follows: 

CHAPTER 9.56 
DISCRIMINATION IN HOUSING, EMPLOYMENT AND PUBLIC ACCOMODATIONS 

PROHIBITED 

Page 1 Ordinance No. 3466 

EXHIBIT "B"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



9.56.010: PURPOSE AND DECLARATION OF POLICY: 

A. In order to ensure that all persons, regardless of sexual orientation and/or gender 
identity/expression enjoy the full benefits of citizenship and are afforded equal opportunities for 
employment, housing, commercial property, and the use of public accommodations, the City of 
Coeur d’Alene has determined that discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation and gender 
identity/expression must be addressed, and appropriate legislation enacted. 

B. It is hereby declared that every individual in the City of Coeur d’ Alene has the right to work 
and earn wages through gainful employment, has the right to seek housing, and has the right to enjoy 
public accommodation and hospitality. 

C. It is hereby declared to be the public policy of the City of Coeur d’Alene to foster the 
employment of all individuals in accordance with their abilities. Every individual has the right to 
work and earn wages through gainful employment. Discriminatory employment practices are 
detrimental because they impede the social and economic progress of a city by preventing all of the 
city’s citizens from contributing to the cultural, spiritual, social, and commercial life of the 
community. The contributions of all the citizens of the City of Coeur d’Alene are essential to the 
City’s growth, vitality, and prosperity. 

D. It is the intent of this Chapter that all persons be treated fairly and equally, and it is the 
express intent of this Chapter to guarantee fair and equal treatment under the law to all people in the 
City of Coeur d’Alene. The denial of fair and equal treatment under the law due to sexual 
orientation or gender identity/expression is detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of the city’s 
citizens, and damages a city’s economic well-being. 

E. This Chapter shall be deemed an exercise &he police power of the City of Coeur d’Alene 
for the protection of the public welfare, prosperity, health and peace of the City of Coeur d’Alene, its 
residents and the community. 

F. The prohibitions against discriminatory acts as provided for in this ordinance are intended to 
supplement state and federal civil rights law prohibiting discrimination in the areas of employment, 
public accommodations, and housing. For complaints alleging discrimination on a basis proscribed 
under state or federal law (e.g. race, color, religious creed, ancestry, age, sex, national origin, and/or 
disability) the Complainant is advised of his or her right to file a report alleging a violation of Idaho 
Code section 18-7301 et. seq., and/or his or her right to file a complaint with the Idaho Commission 
on Human Rights and/or the Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission pursuant to Title 
VI1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended, the Fair Housing Act of 1968 as amended, or the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 as amended. 

9.56.020: DEFINITIONS: 

A. “DENY” includes any act which, directly or indirectly, by any person or his agent or 
employee, results or is intended or calculated to result in whole or in part in any discrimination, 
distinction, restriction, or unequal treatment or representation. It also includes, but is not limited to, 

Page 2 Ordinance No. 3466 

EXHIBIT "B"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



the requiring of a person to pay a larger sum than the uniform rates charged other persons, or the 
refusing or withholding from persons the admission, patronage, custom, presence, frequenting, 
dwelling, staying, or lodging in any place of public resort, accommodation, assemblage, or 
amusement except for conditions and limitations established by law and applicable alike to all 
persons, regardless of sexual orientation and/or gender identity/expression, 

B. “DISCRIMINATION’ is any direct or indirect exclusion, distinction, segregation, limitation, 
refusal, denial, or other differentiation in the treatment of a person because of a person’s actual or 
perceived sexual orientation or gender identity or because of a person’s association with any such 
person. Discrimination shall not be interpreted to require or to grant or accord any preferential 
treatment to any person because of that person’s sexual orientation or gender identity/expression. 

C. “FULL ENJOYMENT OF” shall be construed to include, but not be limited to, the right to 
use, rent or purchase real property, any service, commodity or article of personal property offered or 
sold by any person or establishment to the public, and the admission of any person to 
accommodations, advantages, facilities or privileges of any place of public resort, accommodation, 
assemblage or amusement, without acts directly or indirectly causing persons of any particular sexual 
orientation and/or gender identity/expression to be treated as not welcome, accepted, desired or 
solicited. 

D. 
expression or behavior of an individual regardless of a person’s assigned sex at birth. 

“GENDER EXPRESSION/IDENTITY” means a gender-related identity, appearance, 

E. “HOUSING ACCOMMODATION’ is a building or portion of a building, whether 
constructed or to be constructed, that is or will be used as the home, domicile, residence, or sleeping 
quarters of its occupants. 

F. 
organization, association or group of persons however arranged. 

“PERSON shall mean any natural person, firm, corporation, partnership or other 

G. “PLACE OF PUBLIC RESORT, ACCOMMODATION, ASSEMBLAGE OR 
AMUSEMENT” includes, but is not limited to any public place, licensed or unlicensed, kept for 
gain, hire or reward, or where charges are made for admission, service, occupancy or use of any 
property or facilities, whether conducted for the entertainment, housing or lodging of transient 
guests, or for the benefit, use or accommodation of those seeking health, recreation or rest, or for the 
sale of goods and merchandise, or for the rendering of personal services, or for public conveyance or 
transportation on land, water or in the air, including the stations and terminals thereof and the 
garaging of vehicles, or where food or beverages of any kind are sold for consumption on the 
premises, or where public amusement, entertainment, sports or recreation of any kind is offered with 
or without charge, or where medical service or care is made available, or where the public gathers, 
congregates, or assembles for amusement, recreation or public purposes, or public halls, public 
elevators and public washrooms of buildings and structures occupied by two or more tenants, or by 
the owner and one or more tenants, or any public library or any educational institution wholly or 
partially supported by public funds, or schools of special instruction, or nursery schools, or day care 
centers or children’s camps; nothing herein contained shall be construed to include, or apply to, any 

Page 3 Ordinance No. 3466 

EXHIBIT "B"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



institute, bona fide club, or place of accommodation, which is by its nature distinctly private, 
provided that where public use is permitted that use shall be covered by this section; nor shall 
anything herein contained apply to any educational facility operated or maintained by a bona fide 
religious or sectarian institution. 

H. 
bisexuality. 

“SEXUAL ORIENTATION’ is actual or perceived homosexuality, heterosexuality and/or 

9.56.030: PROHIBITED DISCRIMINATORY ACTS: 

The following acts are prohibited and shall constitute a misdemeanor: 

A. To deny to any other person because of sexual orientation and/or gender identity/expression 
the right to work: (a) by failing or rehsing to hire, (b) by discharging, (c) by barring from 
employment, (d) by discriminating against such person in compensation or in other terms or 
conditions of employment, or (e) otherwise discriminating against an individual with respect to 
employment. 

B. To deny to or to discriminate against any person because of sexual orientation and/or gender 
identity/expression the full enjoyment of any of the accommodations, advantages, facilities or 
privileges of any place of public resort, accommodation, assemblage, or amusement. 

C. To deny to or discriminate against any other person because of sexual orientation and/or 
gender identity/expression in the sale, purchase, lease or rental of any housing accommodation, or to 
otherwise discriminate in the terms and conditions, maintenance, improvement or repair of any 
housing accommodation. 

9.56.040: EXCEPTIONS: 

A. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, nothing in this Chapter is intended to alter or 
abridge other rights, protections, or privileges secured under state and/or federal law. This 
ordinance shall be construed and applied in a manner consistent with First Amendment jurisprudence 
regarding the freedom of speech and exercise of religion. 

B. This chapter does not applq. to: 

1 . Religious corporations, associations, educational institutions, or societies. 

2. An expressive association whose employment of a person protected by this chapter 
would significantly burden the association’s rights of expressive association under Boy 
Scouts of America v. Dale, 530 U.S. 640 (2000). 

3. The United States government, any of its departments or agencies, or any corporation 
wholly owned by it; or the state of Idaho or any of its departments, agencies, or political 
subdivisions, other than the City of Coeur d’Alene. 

Page 4 Ordinance No. 3466 

EXHIBIT "B"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



C. This ordinance shall not apply: (a) to the rental of a housing accommodation in a building 
which contains housing accommodations for not more than two (2) families living independently of 
each other, if the lessor or a member of his family resides in one (1) of the housing accommodations, 
or (b) to the rental of a room or rooms in a single family residential housing accommodation by an 
individual if he or a member of his family resides therein. 

9.56.050: UNLAWFUL INTIMIDATION, RETALIATION, AND INTERFERENCE: 

It shall be unlawful for any person to discriminate against, harass, threaten, harm, damage, or 
otherwise penalize another person for opposing an unlawful practice, for filing a complaint, for 
assisting, or participating in any manner in the investigation, or in mediation concerning this 
Chapter. 

9.56.060: PENALTY: 

A. 
Chapter 1.28.. 

A violation of this Chapter is a misderneanor, punishable as provided in Municipal Code 

B. A prosecutor may reduce the violation to an infraction, payable by a $100 fine, if the 
defendant engages in corrective actions, which may include, but are not limited to the following: 
sensitivity training for the defendant andor the defendant’s employees; the defendant’s agreement to 
adopt and pursue a policy of nondiscrimination in its practices; and the defendant’s agreement to not 
engage in discriminatory practices in the future. The charge shall be filed as a misdemeanor 
violation and may only be reduced upon motion of the prosecutor. There shall be no right to a trial by 
jury for an infraction citation or complaint. 

C. Any person who falsely reports a violation of this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor. 

9.56.070: PRIVATE RIGHT OF ACTION: 

There is no private right of action that is created by this Chapter or money damages available to any 
person based on this Chapter. 

SECTION 2. All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 

SECTION 3. Neither the adoption of this ordinance nor the repeal of any ordinance shall, in any 
manner, affect the prosecution for violation of such ordinance committed prior to the effective date 
of this ordinance or be construed as a waiver of any license or penalty due under any such ordinance 
or in any manner affect the validity of any action heretofore taken by the City of Coeur d’Alene City 
Council or the validity of any such action to be taken upon matters pending before the City Council 
on the effective date of this ordinance. 

Page 5 Ordinance No. 3466 

EXHIBIT "B"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



SECTION 4. The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any provision, clause, sentence, 
subsection, word or part thereof is held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional or inapplicable to any 
person or circumstance, such illegality, invalidity or unconstitutionality or inapplicability shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisims, c!auses, sentences, subsections, words or parts of 
this ordinance or their application to other persons or circumstances. It is hereby declared to be the 
legislative intent that this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal, invalid or 
unconstitutional provision, clause sentence, subsection, word, or part had not been included therein, 
and if such person or circumstance to which the ordinance or part thereof is held inapplicable had 
been specifically exempt therefrom. 

SECTION 5. After its passage and adoption, a summary of this Ordinance, under the provisions 
of the Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City of Coeur d'Alene, 
and upon such publication shall be in full force and effect. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED and SIGNED this qfh day of June, 20 13. 

ATTEST: 

i 

Page 6 Ordinance No. 3466 

EXHIBIT "B"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



SUMMARY OF COEUR D'ALENE ORDINANCE NO. 3466 
Adding a new Chapter 9.56, entitled DISCRIMINATION IN HOUSING, EMPLOYMENT 
AND PUBLIC ACCOMODATIONS PROHIBITED to the Coeur d'Alene Municipal Code 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A NEW CHAPTER TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, TO PROHIBIT 
DISCRIMINATION IN HOUSING, EMPLOYMENT AND PUBLIC ACCOMMODATIONS 
BASED UPON SEXUAL ORIENTATION AND GENDER IDENTITYEXPRESSION AND 
PROVIDING THAT A VIOLATION OF THIS ORDINANCE IS A MISDEMEANOR 
PUNISHABLE BY A FINE OF UP TO $1,000.00 OR BY IMPRISONMENT NOT TO EXCEED 
180 DAYS OR BOTH; PROVIDING REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING 
SEVERABILITY. THE ORDINANCE SHALL BE EFFECTIVE UPON PUBLICATION OF THIS 
SUMMARY. THE FULL TEXT OF THE SUMMARIZED ORDINANCE NO.&V&kIS 
AVAILABLE AT COEUR D'ALENE CITY HALL, 710 E. MULLAN AVENUE, COEUR 
D'ALENE, IDAHO 83814 IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK. 

Page 1 

EXHIBIT "B"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 

I, Warren J. Wilson, am a Deputy City Attorney for the City of Coeur d’Alene, Idaho. I have 
examined the attached summary of Coeur d’Alene Ordinance No. 3466, DISCRIMINATION IN 
HOUSING, EMPLOYMENT AND PUBLIC ACCOMODATIONS PROHIBITED, and find it 
to be a true and complete summary of said ordinance which provides adequate notice to the public of 
the context thereof. 

Warren J. Wilsofief Deputy City Attorney 

Page 2 

EXHIBIT "B"

RE: Resolution No. 16-028 Exhibit D



            
 Staff Report from Human Resources 

 
 

      
To:  General Services  
 
From:  Melissa Tosi; Human Resources Director  
 
Re:  Personnel Rule Amendment 
 
Date:  January 19, 2016 
 
 
DECISION POINT 
To authorize Resolution No. 16-___, authorizing the following amendments to the City’s Classification 
and Compensation Plan. 
 

 
Current 

Title 

 
Proposed 

Title 

Title Change, New 
Classification or 

Classification Change 

 
Current 

Pay Grade 

 
Proposed 

Pay Grade 
 Planning 

Technician 
 

New Classification 
  

9 
Library IT 

Coordinator 
  

Classification Change 
 
8 

 
9 

 
HISTORY 
 
The Library IT Coordinator position has evolved over the years with the increased demands of the larger 
Library.  The IT Coordinators responsibility has shifted from a variety of clerical duties to technical 
duties related to the development, operation and maintenance of library equipment and software.  The 
position also focuses on coordinating software and hardware updates for the Library which is common 
for a technician.  This original job description was drafted when the IT Coordinator was only 
responsible for six (6) computers.  At the current Library and based on the amount of services provided, 
the position is responsible for fifty (50) computers. 
 
In December 2015, the position of Administrative Support Specialist II was vacated in the Planning 
Department.  Due to the vacant position, it gave our Community Planning Director an opportunity to re-
evaluate the needs of the Planning Department.  The most needed area of assistance is in the review and 
processing of residential building permits.  The Planning Technician position will be less clerical and 
more planning specific.  The position will review building permit applications for compliance and 
zoning standards, review legal descriptions, conduct research and analyze data, assist customers with 
basic planning and zoning questions and help with special projects.   
 
The proposed Personnel Rule amendment was posted a minimum of ten (10) consecutive days before 
this City Council meeting.  Additionally, BDPA reviewed both positions and recommends the Planning 
Technician be placed at a pay grade 9 and the Library IT Coordinator  be increased from a pay grade 8 
to a pay grade 9.  
 
 
 



 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
The Planning Department will be able to absorb the 6% increase in leveling for fiscal year 2015-2016 
due to wage savings of the Administrative Support Specialist II position being vacated since December 
2015.   
 
The reclassification (6% increase) of the IT Coordination position will also be absorbed in the current 
fiscal year’s budget due to wage savings from other Library positions remaining vacant.   
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 
Authorizing these amendments will provide an accurate job description and leveling for the duties and 
responsibilities needed for these positions.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
To authorize Resolution No. 16-___, authorizing the above noted amendments to the City’s 
Classification and Compensation Plan. 
 



Resolution No. 16-029 1 | P a g e  

RESOLUTION NO. 16-029 
 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
IDAHO, AMENDING THE CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION PLAN TO 
PROVIDE A NEW CLASSIFICATION FOR THE POSITION OF PLANNING TECHNICIAN, 
PAY GRADE 9, AND PROVIDING A CLASSIFICATION CHANGE FOR THE POSITION 
OF LIBRARY IT COORDINATOR, PAY GRADE 8 TO PAY GRADE 10. 
 
 WHEREAS, the following Classification and Compensation Plan changes have been 
proposed by staff: 
 

 
Current 

Title 

 
Proposed 

Title 

Title Change, New 
Classification or 

Classification Change 

 
Current 

Pay Grade 

 
Proposed 

Pay Grade 
 Planning 

Technician 
 

New Classification 
  

9 
Library IT 

Coordinator 
  

Classification Change 
 
8 

 
9 

 
 And 
 
 WHEREAS, said Classification and Compensation Plan amendments have been properly 
posted a minimum of ten (10) days prior to this Council Meeting; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d’Alene and the 

citizens thereof that such Classification and Compensation Plan amendments as noted above be 
adopted;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene that the 

Classification and Compensation Plan changes as noted above be, and are, hereby adopted.  
 
DATED this  7th day of June, 2016.  

 
 
_______________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk  
 



Resolution No. 16-029 2 | P a g e  

 Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the foregoing 
resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER ENGLISH  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 



ANNOUNCEMENTS 





OTHER BUSINESS 



   

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
DATE:   JUNE 7, 2016 
 
FROM: RENATA MCLEOD, MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTOR 
 
RE: FOOD COURT AND MOBILE VENDOR REGULATIONS 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
HISTORY: On February 24, 2014 the General Services Committee directed staff to create 
regulations regarding door to door sales and mobile sales on private property.  This recommendation 
was based on public safety concerns including fire, traffic, stormwater, and grey water disposal.  Staff 
present draft codes related to mobile vendors to the May 17, 2016 City Council meeting.  During that 
presentation staff noted that there had been a request for a project review for a permanent food court 
development.  Council tabled the discussion to the June 7, 2016 meeting, in order for staff to learn 
more about the food court development.  It appears that there are a few city codes that should be 
amended to better address the food court development.  Staff met on June 1, 2016 to continue 
discussions and determine if there was enough information for a recommendation to Council.  Staff 
determined that there were several areas that need further discussions at a staff level and with 
stakeholders before they could make a recommendation to Council.  Therefore, I am providing a chart 
noting the known codes that will need to be amended (see attached) and to provide staff’s current 
concept related to food courts and mobile vendors.   
 
Staff would like to explore the option of having a food court license, which would be an annual license 
intended to cover the cost of inspections on the site.  Additionally, staff is exploring the option of a 
mobile vendor permit that would cover the cost of the annual inspection of the mobile unit and provide 
that bridge to allow us to enforce the Fire Code upon the mobile unit.  It is staff’s desire to make the 
mobile vendor code simple and acknowledge the responsibilities of the property owners.  Staff will 
bring the next iteration of draft codes to Council within the next few Council meetings.  
 
Additionally, the city code references mobile sales on city owned property in different areas of the 
code; staff will work to combine all codes within one chapter of the City Code.  
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:  Proposed fees would be dependent upon staff time, and will be proposed 
to cover costs.    
 



Food Court Mobile Vendor
Department Code 

Amendment 
needed

Codes to be amended Regulation

Planning Yes M.C. 17.03.050 –Add Definition to Activity 
Groups/General Description of Commercial Activities.                                                                          
Add subchapter to Chapter 17.06 (General, Specific and 
Use Regulations) or 17.07 (Miscellaneous Zoning 
Regulations) for Food Courts, setting out conditions and 
criteria, including wastewater, water, fire, parking, 
screening, landscaping, lighting, sidewalks, site plan 
approval, etc., much as is done for Commercial Business 
Parks (17.07.600 to 17.07.810)  

Clarify one mobile unit can be located at a property (outside 
of a food court); provided the existing use can still meet the 
parking requirement.                                                                                                                                                    
This would not trigger a sewer cap fee.                                       
Staff would recomend a permit for each mobile unit to 
provide for a method to require a fire inspection and 
provide information to the vendor regarding sign codes, 
grey water disposal, etc.  Minimal annual fee, no charge for 
reinspection upon moving the unit. 

Building Yes Clarify under Chapter 17 that applicable building codes 
apply to the food court

Fire Yes Clarify under Chapter 17 that applicable fire code apply to 
the Court

Clarify under Chapter 17 that applicable fire code apply to 
the Court

Municipal 
Services 

Yes Code to require Food Court License; minimal annual fee 
to allow for annual inspection of the site

Will issue permits.  Amend M.C. 5.18  to include a back 
ground check for motorized food concessions (currently 
only allowed sales in residential zone is ice cream sales and 
Schwans)



Memo to: Mayor and City Council 

From: Jim Hammond 

Date: June 1, 2016 

Regarding: URD de-annexation 

Progress continues on the proposed de-annexation of properties within both the Lake and River URDs.  
The critical issues are the map and legal descriptions of the properties to be de-annexed and the de-
annexation ordinance to be adopted by council.    Once drawn and described, the map and legal 
description will be submitted to the Idaho State Tax Commission for their review and approval.   

We will bring a de-annexation ordinance to you in July for your consideration.  That is the final step in 
de-annexation. 

In terms of properties to be annexed, the map has changed, 25% of the properties will be removed from 
the Lake District and 75% of the properties to be removed will be removed from the River District. 

Some concern has been expressed regarding the “opportunity costs” lost to Ignite CDA.  This de-
annexation effort does not remove any funding for planned projects within either district.  Should some 
new project ideas arise, there will be additional funding within each district for other projects. 

Ignite CDA has a debt obligation to Washington Trust Bank.  The newest financial analysis projects zero 
decrease in cash flow within the Lake District thus providing WTB with comfort that their position 
remains as strong as in the previous years. 

In terms of timelines, we hope to bring an ordinance to you for your consideration at the July 5 meeting.  
Adoption of the ordinance will ensure that we can include the new revenue in our 2016/17 budget.  



EXHIBIT B
ignite cda - LAKE DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

SOURCES OF FUNDS 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REVENUES
Assessed Values Above 1997 Base Value (1) 373,126,242$ 349,049,048$ 349,049,048$  349,049,048$  349,049,048$ 349,049,048$  
   Levy Rates (From Kootenai County Assessor):
      Kootenai County 0.003178062
     City of Coeur d'Alene- bond 0.000044342
     City of Coeur d'Alene- bond 0.000188847
     City of Coeur d'Alene 0.005857486
     Lakes Highway District 0.000758112
     Coeur d'Alene School District 0.000009062
      NIC 0.001098933
      Kootenai County Ambulance 0.000171693
      Total Levy Rate 0.011306537
  Net Incremental Tax Revenue 4,218,766$     3,946,536$     3,946,536$     3,946,536$     3,946,536$     3,946,536$     
   Less: Art Fund at 2% 84,375             78,931              78,931              78,931              78,931             78,931              
TOTAL REVENUES - TAX INCREMENT 4,134,391$      3,867,605$      3,867,605$      3,867,605$      3,867,605$      3,867,605$      

 BEGINNING CASH - 9/30/2015 AUDIT 4,240,545$      3,632,757$      2,591,266$      1,024,533$      1,058,474$      1,085,972$      
 OTHER REVENUES (Including Rentals) 129,000           114,600           114,600            114,600            114,600           114,600            
 SALE OF BUILDINGS AND SITES (2)
 REFUND WATRUST DEBT RESERVE (3) 310,740            
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 8,503,936$      7,614,962$      6,573,471$      5,006,738$      5,040,679$      5,378,917$      



USES OF FUNDS 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

OPERATING COSTS (Agency 2016 Budget):
   Salaries/Benefits (50-50 with River URD, 3% 89,106$           91,779$           94,532$            97,368$            100,289$         103,298$          
   Office, Travel and Utilities 25,370             25,370              25,370              25,370              25,370             25,370              
   Professional Services 65,880             65,880              65,880              65,880              65,880             65,880              
   Communications (4) 20,000             5,000                5,000                5,000                5,000                5,000                
   Insurance 2,699                2,699                2,699                2,699                2,699                2,699                
   Property Management 80,922             80,922              80,922              80,922              80,922             80,922              
   Organizational Dues 4,855                4,855                4,855                4,855                4,855                4,855                
   Parking Initiatives (4) 25,000              -    -    -    -    -   
   Planning (4) 75,000             25,000              25,000              25,000              25,000             25,000              
   Special Reserve  (5) 350,000           350,000            350,000            350,000           1,600,000         
TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 388,832$         651,505$         654,258$         657,094$         660,015$         1,913,024$      

CAPITAL COSTS (9/30/2015 Audit, Unless Noted):
   Washington Trust Bank (3) 2,080,000$      2,080,000$      2,080,000$      2,080,000$      2,080,000$      -$                  
    Parking Structure (4) 370,635           370,635            370,635            370,635           370,635            
    Education Facility (6) 1,250,000        1,250,000        
    Midtown (4) 250,000           250,000            
    Four Corners (4) 1,600,000        250,000           250,000            750,000            750,000           
    609 Lofts IRA 29,988             32,631              33,937              35,294              36,706             38,174              
    Ice Plant IRA 44,812             48,762              50,713              52,741              54,851             
    Chamber DDA 2,500                2,500                2,500                2,500                2,500                2,500                
    809 Third Property Debt 24,540             24,540              279,472            
    301 Lakeside Debt 418,028           
    Coeur d'Alene Public Library Debt 63,123             63,123              327,423            
    712 Young Avenue Debt 219,356           
TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS 4,482,347$      4,372,191$      4,894,680$      3,291,170$      3,294,692$      411,309$          

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 4,871,179$      5,023,696$      5,548,938$      3,948,264$      3,954,707$      2,324,333$      

ENDING FUND BALANCE 3,632,757$      2,591,266$      1,024,533$      1,058,474$      1,085,972$      3,054,584$      

Note (1): 2017 Values, from  Assessor: 2015 Value Levy Rate Less Increment New Const. New Increment Net Change
    De-annexed Parcels - Lake District 29,801,079$   0.011306537  336,947$         5,723,885$      64,717$           24,077,194$    
    De-annexed Parcels - River District 89,938,131      0.011195952  1,006,943        3,249,694        36,383             86,688,437      

TOTAL 119,739,210$ 1,343,890$      8,973,579$      101,100$         110,765,631$  
Note (2): The sale of buildngs and sites acquired by tax increment in the Lake District, on the books for $2,679,953, are NOT included. 
Note (3): Assumes the final bond payment to Washington Trust Bank will be from the Bond Reserve Account, currently $1,305,337,
               leaving a net balalnce of $310,740.  

Note (4): From ignite cda projections.
Note (5): Allows funding for local government projects that yet may come before the Agency ($3 million.)
Note (6): Funding over 2 years for the Education Facility, as endorsed by NIC.



EXHIBIT B (Continued)
ignite cda - RIVER DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS
FY 2016 - 2021

SOURCES OF FUNDS 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REVENUES
Assessed Values Above 1997 Base Value (1) 194,264,624$ 107,576,187$ 107,576,187$  107,576,187$  107,576,187$ 107,576,187$  
   Levy Rates (From Kootenai County Assessor):
      Kootenai County 0.003178062
     City of Coeur d'Alene- bond 0.000044342
     City of Coeur d'Alene- bond 0.000188847
     City of Coeur d'Alene 0.005857486
     Post Falls Highway District 0.000647527
     Coeur d'Alene School District 0.000009062
      NIC 0.001098933
      Kootenai County Ambulance 0.000171693
      Total Levy Rate 0.011195952
  Net Incremental Tax Revenue 2,174,977       1,204,418       1,204,418       1,204,418       1,204,418       1,204,418        
   Less: Art Fund at 2% 43,500             24,088              24,088              24,088              24,088             24,088              
TOTAL REVENUES - TAX INCREMENT 2,131,477$      1,180,330$      1,180,330$      1,180,330$      1,180,330$      1,180,330$      

 BEGINNING CASH - 9/30/2015 AUDIT 4,845,159$      6,074,933$      3,064,113$      2,550,170$      2,526,199$      2,491,972$      
 OTHER REVENUES (Including Interest) 4,980                5,080                5,181                5,285                5,391                5,498                
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 6,981,616$      7,260,343$      4,249,624$      3,735,785$      3,711,920$      3,677,800$      



USES OF FUNDS 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

OPERATING COSTS (Agency 2016 Budget):
   Salaries/Benefits (50-50 until 2021, at 3%) 89,106$           91,779$           94,532$            97,368$            100,289$         103,298$          
   Office, Travel and Utilities 12,070             12,070              12,070              12,070              12,070             12,070              
   Professional Services 44,680             44,680              44,680              44,680              44,680             44,680              
   Communications 20,000             5,000                5,000                5,000                5,000                5,000                
   Insurance 2,699                2,699                2,699                2,699                2,699                2,699                
   Organizational Dues 4,855                4,855                4,855                4,855                4,855                4,855                
   Planning 278,000           25,000              25,000              25,000              25,000             25,000              
   Special Project Reserve (2)
TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 451,410$         186,083$         188,836$         191,672$         194,593$         197,602$          

CAPITAL COSTS (9/30/2015 Audit, unless noted):
    River West - Phase 1 282,349$         287,996$         293,756$         299,631$         305,624$         311,736$          
    River West - Phase 2 44,166             45,049              45,950              46,869              47,806             48,763              
    MR Seniors 12,250             12,495              12,745              13,000              13,260             13,525              
    River West Apartments 11,849             12,086              12,328              12,575              12,826             13,083              
    River West III Apartments 4,659                4,659                4,659                4,659                4,659                4,659                
    Circuit at Seltice (3) 47,862              47,862              47,862              47,862             47,862              
    BNSF (3) 100,000           100,000           
    Seltice Way Project (3) 3,500,000        
    KMPO/Tribe Transit Center (3) 500,000            
    Bond - $5 million,10 years, 3.5% (4) 593,318            593,318            593,318           593,318            
TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS 455,273$         4,010,147$      1,510,618$      1,017,914$      1,025,355$      1,032,946$      

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 906,683$         4,196,230$      1,699,454$      1,209,586$      1,219,948$      1,230,548$      

ENDING FUND BALANCE 6,074,933$      3,064,113$      2,550,170$      2,526,199$      2,491,972$      2,447,252$      

Note (1): 2017 Values, from  Assessor: 2015 Value Levy Rate Less Increment New Const. New Increment Net Change
    De-annexed Parcels - Lake District 29,801,079$   0.011306537  336,947$         5,723,885$      64,717$           24,077,194$    
    De-annexed Parcels - River District 89,938,131      0.011195952  1,006,943        3,249,694        36,383             86,688,437      

TOTAL 119,739,210$ 1,343,890$      8,973,579$      101,100$         110,765,631$  

Note (2): From ignite cda, which assumed funding for projects that yet may come before the Agency, moved to pay debt service (see note 4.)
Note (3): Projections from ignite cda.
Note (4): Allows $5 million in bonds in 2018 for projects that yet may come before the Agency.



EXHIBIT B (Continued)
ignite cda - RIVER DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS
FY 2022 - 2027

SOURCES OF FUNDS 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING REVENUES
Assessed Values Above 1997 Base Value (1) 107,576,187$ 107,576,187$ 107,576,187$  107,576,187$  107,576,187$ 107,576,187$  
   Levy Rates (From Kootenai County Assessor):
      Kootenai County 0.003178062
     City of Coeur d'Alene- bond 0.000044342
     City of Coeur d'Alene- bond 0.000188847
     City of Coeur d'Alene 0.005857486
     Post Falls Highway District 0.000647527
     Coeur d'Alene School District 0.000009062
      NIC 0.001098933
      Kootenai County Ambulance 0.000171693
      Total Levy Rate 0.011195952
  Net Incremental Tax Revenue 1,204,418       1,204,418       1,204,418       1,204,418       1,204,418       1,204,418        
   Less: Art Fund at 2% 24,088             24,088              24,088              24,088              24,088             24,088              
TOTAL REVENUES - TAX INCREMENT 1,180,330$      1,180,330$      1,180,330$      1,180,330$      1,180,330$      1,180,330$      

 BEGINNING CASH - 9/30/2015 AUDIT 2,447,252$      2,326,801$      2,260,373$      2,182,718$      2,141,440$      2,088,413$      
 OTHER REVENUES (Including Interest) 5,608                5,720                5,835                5,952                6,071                6,192                
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS 3,633,189$      3,512,851$      3,446,538$      3,369,000$      3,327,841$      3,274,934$      



USES OF FUNDS 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

OPERATING COSTS (Agency 2016 Budget):
   Salaries/Benefits (3% Annual Increase) 106,397$         109,589$         112,877$         116,263$         119,751$         123,344$          
   Office, Travel and Utilities 12,070             12,070              12,070              12,070              12,070             12,070              
   Professional Services 44,680             44,680              44,680              44,680              44,680             44,680              
   Communications 20,000             5,000                5,000                5,000                5,000                5,000                
   Insurance 2,699                2,699                2,699                2,699                2,699                2,699                
   Organizational Dues 4,855                4,855                4,855                4,855                4,855                4,855                
   Planning 75,000             25,000              25,000              25,000              25,000             25,000              
   Special Project Reserve (2)
TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 265,701$         203,893$         207,181$         210,567$         214,055$         217,648$          

CAPITAL COSTS (9/30/2015 Audit, unless noted):
    River West - Phase 1 317,971$         324,331$         330,817$         337,433$         344,182$         351,066$          
    River West - Phase 2 49,738             50,733              51,747              52,782              53,838             54,915              
    MR Seniors 13,795             14,071              14,353              14,640              14,932             15,231              
    River West Apartments 13,344             13,611              13,883              14,161              14,444             14,733              
    River West III Apartments 4,659                4,659                4,659                4,659                4,659                4,659                
    Circuit at Seltice (3) 47,862             47,862              47,862              
    Bond - $5 million,10 years, 3.5% (4) 593,318           593,318           593,318            593,318            593,318           662,672            
TOTAL CAPITAL COSTS 1,040,687$      1,048,585$      1,056,639$      1,016,993$      1,025,373$      1,103,276$      

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS 1,306,388$      1,252,478$      1,263,820$      1,227,560$      1,239,428$      1,320,924$      

ENDING FUND BALANCE 2,326,801$      2,260,373$      2,182,718$      2,141,440$      2,088,413$      1,954,010$      

Note (1): 2017 Values, from  Assessor: 2015 Value Levy Rate Less Increment New Const. New Increment Net Change
    De-annexed Parcels - Lake District 29,801,079$   0.011306537  336,947$         5,723,885$      64,717$           24,077,194$    
    De-annexed Parcels - River District 89,938,131      0.011195952  1,006,943        3,249,694        36,383             86,688,437      

TOTAL 119,739,210$ 1,343,890$      8,973,579$      101,100$         110,765,631$  

Note (2): From ignite cda, which assumed funding for projects that yet may come before the Agency, moved to pay debt service (see note 4.)
Note (3): Projections from ignite cda.
Note (4): From ignite cda, allows $5 million in bonds in 2018 for projects that yet may come before the Agency.







PUBLIC HEARINGS 



  CITY COUNCIL 
 STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE:  June 7, 2016 
FROM:  Dennis J. Grant, Engineering Project Manager 
SUBJECT:  V-16-2, Vacation of a portion of 8TH Street right-of-way 

adjoining the westerly boundary of Lot 5 of the Fraley Addition 
to the City of Coeur d’Alene plat. 

  
 
DECISION POINT 
 

The applicant, Nicholas and Alison Granier, is requesting the vacation of a portion of 
8th Street right-of-way that adjoins the westerly boundary of their property on the 
northeast corner of 8th Street and Elm Avenue (801 E. Elm Avenue). 

 
HISTORY 
 

The requested right-of-way was originally dedicated to the City of Coeur d’Alene 
in the Fraley Addition to the City of Coeur d’Alene plat in 1948.  The Public 
Works Committee unanimously approved the action at its regularly scheduled 
meeting on April 25, 2016 and directed staff to proceed onward for Council 
action. 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 

The vacation of the requested right-of-way would not have any financial impact on 
the City and would add approximately 841 square feet to the County tax roll.  
Although a minor amount, it would be a benefit to the municipality as tax revenue, 
and, to the land owner whose lot adjoins the strip of usable property. 

  
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 
 

The purpose of this request is to accommodate the proposed remodel of the 
existing home.  The applicant is requesting a 7.35 foot vacation along the 8th Street 
frontage.  All utilities are existing and in place, and there is no foreseeable use for 
this additional right-of-way.  Therefore, the vacation of this portion of right-of-way 
adjoining this parcel would not impact the City and would be a benefit to the 
property owner. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends to the City Council to approve the vacation action per Idaho 
Code Section 50-1306, and, to vacate the property to the applicant, Nicholas and 
Alison Granier. 



6 7
s E9'55'00-

6 0.00'

1 s 89'35'00" EExlST. CURB_---- I
7.J5'

5.00'l./

NEW
BOUNDARY LINE

F
a

I
F
@

-
oo
z

OLD
BOUNDARY LINE

o
o)

'o
q
2

I
Eoz

o
I

4
5

I
lo

lo !1

52.6' NEr{ R.O.W

60. ORIGINAL R.O, W

LEGEND I o
C) FOUND SURVEY MARKER AS

NOTED

. SET 1/2'REBAR WITH PVC CAP
MARKEO "PLS 5289".

FOUNO ,," REBAR

N 89'J5'00" w
60.00'

rOUND METAL.-
MARKER

ELM AVE

EXHBTT OF LOr 5TdARLEYIDDIT|ON rO
THE CITY OFtfttrR D'ALENE.

KOOTENAI COUNTY
Fneve *S urreNe.p,t

Ccxt su i n-!! E ng i uL't;N
5O3 Nodn 4th St.e€t. Co€u. d'Alede tdaho. 83814

Ph {208)66,1.21 21/Fat (208)?65-5502Emart sm€t.na@roadrmnor.cdn

E
SCALE

1^=20'
oATi

3t2Bt'16
IILE

F2',t 3
SHEEI
10F1

FENCE POST AT
PROPERTY CORNER

I



V-16-2

http://mapping.cdaid.org/aspnet_client/ESRI/WebADF/PrintTaskLayoutTemplates/default.htm[4/19/2016 1:44:58 PM]

V-16-2



 

       Page 1     V-16-2 

COUNCIL BILL NO. 16-1011 
ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, STATE 

OF IDAHO, VACATING A PORTION OF THE 8th STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY, GENERALLY 
DESCRIBED AS A PARCEL OF LAND ADJOINING THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF LOT 5 
OF THE FRALEY ADDITION TO THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, LOCATED IN THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 50 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, BOISE 
MERIDIAN, CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF 
THIS ORDINANCE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF. 
 

WHEREAS, after public hearing, the City Council finds it to be in the best interests of the 
City of Coeur d'Alene and the citizens thereof that said portion of right-of-way be vacated; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, 

 
BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the following described property, to wit: 
 

Legal description and drawing, attached as Exhibits “A & B” 
 

 be and the same is hereby vacated.   
 
SECTION 2.  That said vacated right-of-way shall revert to the adjoining property owner to 
the east. 
 
 
SECTION 3.  That the existing right-of-way, easements, and franchise rights of any lot 
owners, public utility, or the City of Coeur d’Alene shall not be impaired by this vacation, as 
provided by law, and that the adjoining property owners shall in no manner place any obstruction 
over any public utilities.   
 
 
SECTION 4.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 
 
 
SECTION 5.   After its passage and adoption, a summary of this Ordinance, under the 
provisions of the Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City of 
Coeur d'Alene, and upon such publication shall be in full force and effect. 



 

       Page 2     V-16-2 

 
 Passed under suspension of rules upon which a roll call vote was duly taken and duly 
enacted an ordinance of the City of Coeur d’ Alene at a regular session of the City Council on 
June 7, 2016. 
 

APPROVED by the Mayor this 7th day of June, 2016. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 



 

       Page 1     V-16-2 

SUMMARY OF COEUR D'ALENE ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
8th STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY VACATION 

 
 The City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho, hereby gives notice of the adoption of Coeur d'Alene 
Ordinance No. ____, vacating a portion of 8th Street right-of-way. 
 
 Such right-of-way is more particularly described in Exhibits “A & B” to the Ordinance, 
on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 The Ordinance further provides that the City of Coeur d'Alene shall retain drainage 
easements, utility easements and easements for sidewalk/pedestrian access within the right-of-
way hereby vacated, and provides that the Ordinance shall be effective upon publication of this 
summary.  The full text of the summarized Ordinance No. ____, together with exhibits, is 
available at Coeur d'Alene City Hall, 710 Mullan Avenue, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho 83814, in the 
office of the City Clerk. 
 
 
 
             
       Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

       Page 2     V-16-2 

 
STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 

 
      I, Randall R. Adams, am Chief Civil Deputy City Attorney for the City of Coeur d'Alene, 
Idaho.  I have examined the attached summary of Coeur d'Alene Ordinance No. ____, 8th Street 
right-of-way vacation, and find it to be a true and complete summary of said Ordinance which 
provides adequate notice to the public of the context thereof.  
 
     DATED this 7TH day of June, 2016. 
 
 
                                         
                                 Randall R. Adams, Chief Civil Deputy City Attorney 
 
 



Ordinance No. 3539 V-16-2

jknight
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "A"



6 7
s E9'55'00-

6 0.00'

1 s 89'35'00" EExlST. CURB_---- I
7.J5'

5.00'l./

NEW
BOUNDARY LINE

F
a

I
F
@

-
oo
z

OLD
BOUNDARY LINE

o
o)

'o
q
2

I
Eoz

o
I

4
5

I
lo

lo !1

52.6' NEr{ R.O.W

60. ORIGINAL R.O, W

LEGEND I o
C) FOUND SURVEY MARKER AS

NOTED

. SET 1/2'REBAR WITH PVC CAP
MARKEO "PLS 5289".

FOUNO ,," REBAR

N 89'J5'00" w
60.00'

rOUND METAL.-
MARKER

ELM AVE

EXHBTT OF LOr 5TdARLEYIDDIT|ON rO
THE CITY OFtfttrR D'ALENE.

KOOTENAI COUNTY
Fneve *S urreNe.p,t

Ccxt su i n-!! E ng i uL't;N
5O3 Nodn 4th St.e€t. Co€u. d'Alede tdaho. 83814

Ph {208)66,1.21 21/Fat (208)?65-5502Emart sm€t.na@roadrmnor.cdn

E
SCALE

1^=20'
oATi

3t2Bt'16
IILE

F2',t 3
SHEEI
10F1

FENCE POST AT
PROPERTY CORNER

I

Ordinance No. 3539 V-16-2

jknight
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "B"



  CITY COUNCIL 
 STAFF REPORT 
 
DATE:  June 7, 2016 
FROM:  Dennis J. Grant, Engineering Project Manager 
SUBJECT:  V-16-3, Vacation of the 20’ Public Sewer Easement in the 

Crossroads Subdivision 
  
 
DECISION POINT 
 

The applicant, HJ CDA, L.P. – Alan Johnson, is requesting the vacation of a portion 
of a 20’ public sewer easement located in Lot G of Block 1 of the Crossroads 
Subdivision. 

 
HISTORY 
 

The public sewer easement on the subject property was originally installed with 
the Zanetti Subdivision in 2009 and then kept in place on the Crossroads 
Subdivision in 2013.  The sewer main has been relocated and is no longer in the 
existing easement.  The General Services Committee unanimously approved the 
action at its regularly scheduled meeting on May 23, 2016 and directed staff to 
proceed onward for Council action. 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 

There is no financial impact to the City.  No additional tax revenue would be 
generated by the vacation because it is an easement and not property in fee. 

  
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 
 

The purposes of this request it to vacate a portion of a 20’ public sewer easement 
that is no longer in use due to the relocation of the existing sewer main during the 
construction of The Crossroads Shopping Center.  The reason for this request is to 
accommodate the development of the subject property.  The unused easement 
portion unnecessarily encumbers the buildable area of the parcel, jeopardizing the 
owner’s ability to affectively develop the property.  The Development Review Team 
was informed about this vacation and did not have any concerns. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends to the City Council to approve the vacation action per Idaho 
Code Section 50-1306, and, to vacate the noted easement to the applicant, HJ 
CDA, L.P. – Alan Johnson. 



mhathaway
Polygon

mhathaway
Text Box
Area highlighted in yellow is from the Zanetti Subdivision and is no long needed due to the re-routing of the sewer line as part of this plat.



 

       Page 1     V-16-3 

COUNCIL BILL NO. 16-1012 
ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY< 
IDAHO, VACATING A PUBLIC SEWER EASEMENT IN THE CROSSROADS SUBDIVISION, 
RECORDED IN BOOK “K” OF PLATS, PAGE 405, RECORDS OF KOOTENAI COUNTY, 
GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS A 20 FOOT WIDE PUBLIC SEWER EASEMENT LYING IN 
THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 50 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST, 
BOISE MERIDIAN, COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF 
THIS ORDINANCE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF. 
 

WHEREAS, after public hearing, the City Council finds it to be in the best interests of the 
City of Coeur d'Alene and the citizens thereof that said easement be vacated; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, 

 
BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the following described property, to wit: 
 

Legal description and drawing, attached as Exhibits “A & B” 
 

 be and the same is hereby vacated.   
 
SECTION 2.  That said vacated easement shall be relinquished, released, revoked and 
abandoned, and the current owners of the property affected by said easement, their heirs and assigns, 
shall be the beneficiaries of the vacation. 
 
 
SECTION 3.  That the franchise rights of any lot owners, public utility, or the City of Coeur 
d’Alene shall not be impaired by this vacation, as provided by law. 
 
 
SECTION 4.   All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 
 
 
SECTION 5.   After its passage and adoption, a summary of this Ordinance, under the 
provisions of the Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City of 
Coeur d'Alene, and upon such publication shall be in full force and effect.  



 

       Page 2     V-16-3 

 
Passed under suspension of rules upon which a roll call vote was duly taken and duly 

enacted an ordinance of the City of Coeur d’ Alene at a regular session of the City Council on 
June 7, 2016. 
 
 

APPROVED by the Mayor this 7th day of June, 2016. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Steve Widmyer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 



 

       Page 1     V-16-3 

SUMMARY OF COEUR D'ALENE ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
PUBLIC SEWER EASEMENT VACATION 

 
 The City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho hereby gives notice of the adoption of Coeur d'Alene 
Ordinance No. ____, vacating a portion of a public sewer easement in the Crossroads 
Subdivision. 
 
 Such easement is more particularly described in Exhibits “A & B” to this Ordinance, 
which are on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 

 
 The Ordinance further provides the Ordinance shall be effective upon publication of this 
summary.  The full text of the summarized Ordinance No. ____, together with the exhibits, is 
available at Coeur d'Alene City Hall, 710 Mullan Avenue, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho 83814 in the 
office of the City Clerk. 
 
 
 
             
       Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 

 



 

       Page 2     V-16-3 

 
 

STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 
 
      I, Randall R. Adams, am Chief Civil Deputy City Attorney for the City of Coeur d'Alene, 
Idaho.  I have examined the attached summary of Coeur d'Alene Ordinance No. ____, vacating a 
portion of a 20 foot wide public sewer easement in the Crossroads Subdivision, and find it to be a 
true and complete summary of said Ordinance which provides adequate notice to the public of the 
context thereof.  
 
     DATED this 7th day of June, 2016. 
 
 
                                         
                                 Randall R. Adams, Chief Civil Deputy City Attorney 
 
 



Ordinance 3540 V-16-3

jknight
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "A"



Ordinance 3540 V-16-3

mhathaway
Polygon

mhathaway
Text Box
Area highlighted in yellow is from the Zanetti Subdivision and is no long needed due to the re-routing of the sewer line as part of this plat.

jknight
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "B"



SR - PY 2015 CAPER.doc 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 
TO:    MAYOR WIDMYER AND THE CITY COUNCIL  
 
DATE:   JUNE 7, 2016 
 
FROM: RENATA MCLEOD, MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTOR 
 
RE: APPROVAL OF ANNUAL CONSOLIDATED PERFORMANCE AND 

EVALUATION REPORT (CAPER) FOR THE USE OF COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) FOR PLAN YEAR 2015.  

 
 
DECISION POINT:   
 

• To authorize the Plan Year 2015 Consolidated Performance and Evaluation Report 
(CAPER) for the use of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds.   

 
HISTORY:  The City is required to submit an annual performance report with a fifteen-day 
public comment period.  The notice of the public comment period and notice of public hearing 
was published on May 23, 2016, with the public comment period ending June 7, 2016.  No 
comments were received thus far.  
 
FINANCIAL:  No funds are being requested for this program.   
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS:  Authorizing this report will allow staff to submit the report 
timely, and stay in compliance with the HUD regulations.  
 
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION:   
 

• To authorize the Plan Year 2015 Consolidated Performance and Evaluation Report 
(CAPER) for the use of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds.   

 
 



6/2/2016

1

Community Development   
Block Grant

2015 Consolidated Annual 
Performance and Evaluation 
Report (CAPER)

Must Meet One of  Three
National Objectives

1.  Benefit to Low and Moderate Income (LMI) 
persons.

2.  Aid in the prevention of slum and blight.

3.  Meet an urgent need.



6/2/2016

2

Selecting Activities

Must meet the eligibility test

Must be within the Annual Action Plan and 
Consolidated Plan Goals

Consider: capacity of staffing, size of 
community and amount of allocation, local 
policy, and capacity of sub-recipient 
organizations.

Year in Review

Projects that carried over from PY 2014 
 Trinity Group Homes (final grant payout) –

total awarded $24,643
 Safe Passage Community Grant ($82.46 left 

to be paid out) total awarded $10,203
 The children’s Village ($5,584.19 left to be 

paid out) total awarded $86,154



6/2/2016

3

2015 Year in Review

Goal:  Increase supply of for sale housing at 
prices affordable to city’s low to moderate 
income workers.
Goal:  Increase the supply of rental housing 
affordable to extremely low income 
renters/residents with special 
needs/homeless
 The Housing Needs Assessment was 
completed

2015 Year in Review
Goal: Continue with neighborhood revitalization 

efforts including code enforcement, to 
improve the condition of housing and 
commercial properties in low income areas.

 Emergency Minor Repair and Accessibility Program 
(EMRAP) – expended $28,205.58 on 13 completed 
projects. 
 Remaining 2015 funds will assist 3 additional 
households, one being a code enforcement project up to 
$20,000.



6/2/2016

4

2015 Year in Review

Goal: Public Service Activities other than 
Low/Moderate Income Housing 
Community Opportunity Grants

Two Community Opportunity Grants were awarded: 

•The Boys and Girls Club was awarded $37,000 (paid 
from 2014 funds through a substantial amendment 
during PY 2015) 
•St. Vincent de Paul was awarded $162,840

BUDGET 
CATEGORY

% OF 
ALLOCATION AMOUNT

ADMINISTRATION PAC & CITY 20.0% $58210  

INCREASE SUPPLY OF HOUSING 0% $0

COMMUNITY PROJECTS 56% $162,840

SIDEWALKS 0% 0

NEIGHBORHOOD 
REVITALIZATION

24% $70,000

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 0% 0
TOTAL: 100% $291,050



6/2/2016

5

Public Comment

No public comments have been received.

Requested Action

 Accept any additional public comments.

 Approve the CAPER report so it may be 
submitted to HUD.


	Agenda
	PD Annual Report
	Council Minutes 05/17/16
	Council Minutes 05/19/16
	GSMinutes 052316
	Setting of Public Hearing - Fee Increases
	Beer/Wine Sushi I
	Beer/Wine The Buoy
	Consent Reso. 16-028
	SR Lake Forest West 1st and 2nd Addns
	SR - Subrecipient Agreements - CDBG
	SR - Agr with Syringa Prop Mgmt
	SR - Classification Compensation Amen June2016
	Appt. of Tim Kastning to Urban Forestry Cmte
	SR Mobile Food Courts
	SR - Deannexations Update to Council
	Public Hearing V-16-2
	Public Hearing V-16-3
	SR - PY 2015 CAPER



